

NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT (NTD) REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL RFP #2025-01

ANNUAL AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 13, 2024

The Norwalk Transit District is seeking proposals from Certified Public Accounting firms to conduct the annual audit of the Norwalk Transit District's financial statements, the Supplementary Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance and the Supplementary Schedule of State Financial Assistance for the years ending June 30, 2025, June 30, 2026 and June 30, 2027 with options for the years ending June 30, 2028 and June 30, 2029.

The annual audits must be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) as described in Statements on Auditing Standards, issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Government Auditing Standards (GAS), issued by the Controller General of the United States, the Single Audit Act of 1984 (as amended), the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the Connecticut Compliance Supplements to the State Single Audit Act. Audits for years beyond June 30, 2025 will be in accordance with any changes made to the OMB Circulars.

Also attached are the following related appendices which will be incorporated into any resulting contract by reference: Technical Specifications (Appendix A), FY 2024 Audit (Appendix A1) NTD Standard Form of Contract Agreement (Appendix B), the Requirements of the Federal Transit Administration and State of Connecticut (Appendix C), Required Proposal Forms (Appendix D), and Protest Procedures (Appendix E).

Questions on the proposal documents are due no later than 11:00 a.m. on January 3, 2025. First round addenda will be issued by 4:00 p.m., January 6, 2025. January 10, 2025 11:00 a.m. is the deadline for any final questions and/or concerns which will be addressed via addenda no later than 4:00 p.m. on January 13, 2025. One electronic submittal, one (1) original and three (3) copies of the complete Proposal package must be received no later than 2:00 p.m. on January 17, 2025 at the NTD's office at 275 Wilson Avenue, Norwalk, Connecticut 06854. The sealed Proposals must include, at minimum, completed Appendices C and D, of the enclosed Proposal package and a written response to the technical specifications in the order represented in this section. The sealed Proposals must be clearly marked "RFP #2025-01, Annual Audit of Financial Statements". Proposals shall be addressed to:

Lori Hammill, Chief Compliance Officer Norwalk Transit District 275 Wilson Avenue Norwalk, CT 06854 System for Award Management (SAM) is the Official U.S. Government system that consolidated the capabilities of CCR/FedReg, ORCA, and EPLS for the purpose of verifying if a potential vendor/contractor is suspended or disbarred from receiving federal fund and state funds (as imposed by the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation. There is NO fee to register for this site. Entities may register at https://sam.gov/. User guides and webinars are available under the Help tab. Please note Proposers must be registered with SAM, which requires a DUNS number. Please carefully review this section under the state and federal suspension and debarment requirements contained in the procurement documents. We reserve the right to determine the Proposer non-responsive if it fails to be registered with SAM at the time of the proposal submittal.

Should any additional information prove necessary, please contact me at (203) 299-5162.

Sincerely,

NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT

Lori Hammill

Lori Hammill, Chief Compliance Officer

PROPOSAL PROCEDURE

1.0 General

The Proposal response shall constitute an indication that the Proposer will meet the requirements established in the attached Technical Specifications together with any "Addenda" issued by the NTD relative to this procurement.

2.0 Proposal Schedule

- A. The request for proposals will be issued December 13, 2024.
- B. Requests for exceptions and or first round questions regarding the Technical Specifications must be in writing and received at the NTD office at 275 Wilson Avenue, Norwalk, Connecticut, 06854, by 11:00 a.m. on January 3, 2025. The NTD shall issue resulting addenda pursuant to these requests by January 6, 2025 no later than 4:00 p.m. Final questions are due January 10, 2025 no later than 11:00 a.m. and will be addressed by 4:00 p.m. on January 13, 2025.
- D. Proposals must be received at the aforementioned address by no later than 2:00 p.m. on January 17, 2025.
- E. The contract will commence immediately upon award for the first audit year and the maximum term will be for a period of three audit years, with one additional two audit year renewal option at the sole discretion of the District. The maximum audit years will be for the years ending June 30, 2025 through June 30, 2029.

3.0 Proposer Review and Requests for Exception

- A. Proposers may discuss this procurement package and any related addenda with the NTD. Such discussions do not, however, relieve Proposers from responsibility for submitting written requests for "exceptions".
- B. Proposers must submit written requests to the NTD for approved equals, clarifications or exceptions relative to the technical specifications and/or addenda issued by the NTD no later than January 10, 2025, 11:00 a.m. Any request or protest must be fully supported with technical data, test results or other pertinent information as evidence that the substitute offered is equal to or better than that required.
- C. The NTD shall make a determination relative to each request for exception(s) in writing. All written determinations will be issued as an "addendum" to the technical specifications and will be emailed or otherwise furnished to all known interested Proposers by 4:00 p.m. on January 13, 2025.
- D. The undersigned acknowledges receipt of all addenda to the technical specifications by executing each addenda issued and returning it concurrently with their proposal. Failure to acknowledge receipt of all addenda may cause the Proposal to be considered nonresponsive to the solicitation. Acknowledged receipt of each addendum must be clearly established and included with the offer.

4.0 Proposal Package

A. <u>A COMPLETE PROPOSAL PACKAGE SHALL INCLUDE, AT MINIMUM,</u> THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

- (a) Completed Appendix C requirements of the Federal Transit Administration and requirements of the State of Connecticut;
- (b)Completed Appendix D NTD Proposal Forms; and
- (c) Written response to the technical specifications should be addressed in the order identified in the technical specifications. If a pre-packaged comprehensive proposal is submitted, proposers are responsible for identifying where the response to each area identified in the technical specification is contained and addressed.
- (c) Bid Security (not applicable)

B. THE PROPOSER SHALL ALSO SUBMIT, AS PART OF THE RESPONSIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE CONTAINED IN APPENDIX D THAT IT:

- (a) Has the capability to perform the work and supply the materials within the time specified in this contract
- (b) Has the experience to perform the work described in the attached Technical Specifications. The Proposer shall provide the following information relative to all contracts for similar work performed in the previous three (3) years:
 - name, address and telephone number of the organization and contact person
 - brief description of project
 - month and year of contract
- (c) Has necessary financial resources or has the capability to obtain such resources to complete the contract in a satisfactory manner within the required time.
- (d) Other requirements specific to the solicitation.

The District will rely in part on this questionnaire in determining if the Proposer is a responsible and responsive as the first step of the evaluation process. If the Proposer fails to meet the minimal requirements of this determination it will be determined non-responsive and its proposal will not be reviewed any further. All Proposers determined non-responsive will be notified in writing.

C. One electronic submittal, one (1) original and three (3) copies of the complete Proposal package must be received no later than 2:00 p.m. on January 17, 2025 at the NTD's office at 275 Wilson Avenue, Norwalk, Connecticut 06854. The sealed Proposals must be clearly marked "RFP 2025-01, Annual Audit of Financial Statements". Proposals shall be addressed to:

Lori Hammill, Chief Compliance Officer Norwalk Transit District 275 Wilson Avenue Norwalk, Connecticut 06854

5.0 Proposal Price

The Proposer shall state an annual firm fixed proposal price based on a total number of anticipated engagement hours based on payment terms of net forty-five (45) days from the date of the completed audit as detailed in the specifications.

The price quoted in any Proposal submitted shall include all items of labor, material, tools, equipment and other costs necessary to fully complete the project pursuant to the attached technical specifications. All Proposals remain in effect forty-five (45) days from Proposal opening.

It is understood that in the event of unexpected circumstances/findings resulting in higher than anticipated engagement hours, this contract terms, scope, and cost will be reopened for renegotiation.

If it should become necessary for the Norwalk Transit District to request the auditor to render any additional services requested in this Request for Proposals or to perform additional work as a result of the specific recommendations included in any report issued on this engagement, and or change in regulations or guidance impacting the financial health or direction of the District during the term of this contract then such additional work shall be performed only if set forth in an addendum to the contract between the Norwalk Transit District and the firm. Any such additional work agreed to between the Norwalk Transit District and the firm shall be performed with acceptable parameter of based on the rates set forth in the cost proposal in Appendix D.

6.0 Taxes

The NTD is a tax-exempt governmental entity. Prices quoted by the Proposer should not include any tax from which a governmental entity is exempt. The price quoted shall include the total and complete cost for all services requested in conformance with the attached technical specifications.

7.0 Cost Liability

The NTD assumes no responsibility and no liability for costs incurred by the Proposer for the preparation of a Proposal or any cost associated with the selection process.

8.0 Proposal Postponement and Amendment

The NTD reserves the right to revise or amend the specifications any time prior to the formal bid opening. Revisions, amendments and/or postponement, in the form of an addendum, shall be provided to all Proposers receiving or requesting Proposal materials by email.

The NTD reserves the right to postpone the Proposal opening at any time prior to the scheduled date and time if deemed necessary and in the best interest of the NTD.

9.0 Public Proposal Opening

Proposals shall not be opened publicly.

10.0 Proposal Rejections

The NTD reserves the right to waive any minor Proposal informalities or irregularities in the Proposals received which do not go to the heart of the Proposal or prejudice other Proposers or to reject any and all Proposals submitted when it is in the best interest of the Transit NTD. Conditional Proposals, or those which take exception to the specifications and addenda, will be considered nonresponsive and will be rejected.

11.0 Single Proposal Response

If only one Proposal is received in response to the invitation for bids or requests for proposals, a detailed cost proposal may be requested of the single Proposer. A cost/price analysis and evaluation and/or audit may be performed in order to determine if the price is fair and reasonable.

12.0 <u>Proposal Withdrawal</u>

An authorized representative of the Proposer may withdraw Proposals any time prior to the scheduled Proposal due date of January 17, 2025, 2:00 p.m. After that time, Proposals may not be withdrawn for forty-five (45) calendar days.

13.0 Award Procedure

- A. The NTD shall review the proposals within ten business weekdays of the proposal opening. It is anticipated that notices of the NTD's determination will be issued to all responding agencies by email.
- B. The NTD's evaluation will be a multi-part process. Proposals will first be evaluated to determine if the submitting entity is responsible and responsive to the procurement solicitation. This will be achieved by evaluating items (1) and (2) below.
 - (1) Ability to fulfill State/Federal Requirements
 - (2) Completeness of proposal; inclusion of all requisite certifications inclusive of the responsibility questionnaire.

Proposers that are determined non-responsive or responsible will be advised in writing and will not move forward to the next step of evaluation.

Proposals determined responsive and responsible will then be evaluated on the following:

C. The overall evaluation criteria listed below are listed in relative order of importance. As proposals are considered by the District to be more equal in their technical merit, the evaluated cost or price becomes more important so that when technical proposals are evaluated as essentially equal, cost or price may be the deciding factor.

(1) Technical Evaluation

Past Performance –Responses to the evaluation questionnaire regarding past performance will be evaluated under this section. Offerors that have little or no relevant performance history should expect a lower rating in this category. Offers should ensure that the response to the technical specification section of this proposal provides information on problems encountered on this contract type and corrective measures taken. Past performance of key personnel and subcontractors (if applicable) that will perform major or critical aspects of the work will also be evaluated as a primary indicator of an offeror's ability to perform the contract successfully. Adequate experience and verifiable history in the provision of service sought through this procurement must be fully demonstrated in the proposal submission. It should be noted that this is separate from the responsibility determination which makes the determination that at the time of contract award, the ability to perform successfully and a willingness to comply with the terms and conditions of a proposed contract.

Technical Criteria – Technical factors regarding the specific methods, designs, and systems proposed to be used by the offeror will be considered and they must be tailored to the specific requirements of this solicitation. These factors will represent the key technical areas of importance considered in the technical specification of this solicitation.

Key Personnel – An evaluation of key personnel will be performed and as this procurement involves services or requirements where management of the work is a critical factor in determining its success. Qualifications and experience of key personnel are an important evaluation factor. The District may require oral presentations by key personnel and may ask these key personnel relevant questions to determine the depth of their knowledge in critical areas.

(2) Overall Price

A cost realism analysis will be performed to determine what the District should realistically expect to pay for the proposed effort prior to the award. Prices will be evaluated and brought alongside the technical proposal scores in order to make the necessary tradeoff decisions as to which proposal represents the best overall value to the District.

- (3) Other Relevant Matters (Not applicable)
- D. The District will select that proposal that is the most advantageous, which may not necessarily be the highest ranked technically or the lowest proposed price. Careful consideration will be given to the technical merits of the competitors and the price differentials to see if a higher price proposal warrants the award based on the benefits it offers to the District as compared to a lower price proposal. The selection will be made

on a "best value" basis. The experience and capability of the Proposer to undertake this contract will be evaluated for the maximum benefit to NTD.

NTD will appoint an Evaluation Committee who will be responsible for the review and evaluation of Proposals submitted in response to this RFP. The Evaluation Committee reserves the right to request a tour of the Proposers' facility. If such tours are pursued, their occurrence, time and date will be at the discretion of NTD.

During the evaluation process, the Evaluation Committee may, at its discretion, request any one or all of the respondents to make oral presentations. Such presentations will provide firms with an opportunity to answer any questions the Evaluation Committee may have on the firm's Proposal. Not all respondents may be asked to make such oral presentations.

NTD has an established evaluation process for the review of the Proposals. Proposals will be analyzed for responsiveness, compliance with technical specifications, capabilities, quality, price, instructions and all other aspects of this RFP.

Proposals that do not comply with these instructions and do not include the required information, forms and certifications may be rejected as insufficient or not be considered. NTD reserves the right to request a Proposer to provide any missing information and to make corrections. All non-responsive respondents will be notified in writing.

Submittal of a Proposal will signify that the Proposer has accepted the whole of the Contract documents, except such conditions, exceptions, reservations or understandings explicitly, fully and separately stated in the Proposer's Proposal submittal. Any such conditions, exceptions, reservations or understandings, which do not result in the rejection of the Proposal, are subject to evaluation under the Proposal evaluation criteria.

Additionally, NTD has established a resource support team that will assist the Committee in the evaluation process. The Team may be called on for a variety of different research and analysis purposes including but not limited to reference checking, price analysis etc. The Committee will initially meet to discuss the overall Proposals and to determine how the Team will most efficiently be utilized in the evaluation process. The Committee will direct the Team in what specific areas of analysis and/or research if any that will be required. All reports provided by the Team will be made to all Committee members in writing. On receipt of all required information the Committee may meet to jointly discuss the Proposals and any areas of concerns. The Committee then will independently evaluate Proposals. The Committee reserves the right to call upon the Team at any time during the evaluation process for its expertise. The Committee may convene at any time to discuss any questions or concerns they may encounter. The Committee may rely on this resource material in the evaluation of the Proposals.

Upon completion of reviews, each Proposal will be given a total composite score. Each Evaluator will rank the Proposals with number 1 being the highest. The rankings for each Proposal will be added together and the Proposer with the lowest total composite ranking score will be determined the top ranked Proposer and so on down the line.

If determined necessary the Committee may invite top-ranked Proposers for an interview or may choose to visit current Proposer sites. If interviews or visits are conducted the Committee

will be provided the opportunity to revise their original review to accurately reflect any additional information that may have been obtained through the interview process. Each Committee member will document this separately and independently. Once again Proposals will be evaluated and scored as noted above to determine the top ranked Proposer. The Proposer ranked number one and whose price Proposal is acceptable, may be contacted regarding any potential areas to be negotiated. If negotiations are conducted and not successful with the number 1 ranked Proposer then negotiations may be conducted with the next highest ranking Proposer and so on down the line until negotiations are successful in producing a Proposal that is found to be the most advantageous to NTD, cost and other factors considered.

NTD reserves the right to contact Proposer(s) regarding an interview, areas of concern, areas to be negotiated and/or request a best and final Proposal. NTD additionally reserves the right to award on the basis of initial Proposals submitted without any negotiations or discussions if such action is deemed to be in the best interest of NTD. In any event, NTD reserves the right to accept other than the lowest cost Proposal. All unsuccessful Proposers will be contacted notifying them of their status.

This criterion is presented to allow NTD the ability to analyze Proposals received on an equal basis and to afford all Proposers the opportunity to know the basis upon which their Proposals will be evaluated.

14.0 <u>Proposal Protest Procedure</u>

See attached Protest Procedures (Appendix E).

APPENDIX A

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

The Norwalk Transit District is seeking proposals from Certified Public Accounting firms to conduct the annual audit of the Norwalk Transit District's comprehensive Annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 and subsequent years. The audit should include all federal and state assistance programs as required by the Federal and State Single Audit Acts.

Scope of the examination

The audit should be made in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) as described in Statements on Auditing Standards, issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Government Auditing Standards (GAS), issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the Single Audit Act of 1984 (as amended), the provisions of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and the Connecticut Compliance Supplement to the State Single Audit Act. Audits for years beyond June 30, 2025 will be in accordance with any changes made to the OMB Circulars.

Services rendered at the conclusion of the audit

The successful auditing firm should provide to the Norwalk Transit District at the conclusion of the annual audit:

- The reports on the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report with supplemental schedules
- Circular A-133, Federal Single Audit Report and State Single Audit Report and related required compliance reports.
- The reports on the internal controls of the District, and the accounting and administrative control system relative to Federal and State financial assistance.
- The reports on compliance with laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and Federal and State general and specific requirements.
- The Supplementary Program Information report as required under the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation contract.
- The Office of Policy and Management Municipal Audit Ouestionnaire.
- The Data Collection Form.
- The management letter of comments and recommendations.
- The information necessary for the submission of the National Transit Database Report.

Working Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers

All working papers and reports must be retained, at the auditor's expense, for a minimum of five (5) years, unless the firm is notified in writing by the Norwalk Transit District of the need to extend the retention period. The auditor will be required to make working papers available, upon request by the Norwalk Transit District. In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards and of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, the auditor is required to provide access to the working papers and photocopies thereof to a federal agency or the Comptroller General of the United States upon their request for their regulatory oversight purposes. If such a request is made, the auditor will inform the Chief Executive Officer prior to providing such access. In addition, the firm shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor auditors and allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to matters of continuing accounting significance.

Qualifications of the successful auditing firm

The successful auditing firm should be independent, as defined by generally accepted auditing standards promulgated by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and government auditing standards as issued by the Comptroller General of the United States regarding the Norwalk Transit District.

Additional requirements that the auditors must meet are:

- The firm must be licensed and registered to practice in the State of Connecticut through the State Board of Accountancy and provide such documentation.
- The firm must also document compliance with all requirements of the continuing education mandates, as they pertain to governmental engagements, of the State Board of Accountancy.
- Each firm submitting a proposal should describe the qualifications and expertise of the firm members to be utilized in performing the audit.
- A list of professional references of other similar governmental engagements should be included in the package.
- Have not been suspended or debarred from performing governmental audits.
- Have received a positive peer review in the past 3 years. A copy of the firm's most recent peer review should be submitted with any proposal.

Timing of Services

The accounting department of the Norwalk Transit District will have available to the successful auditing firm trial balances, account reconciliations and supporting schedules by September 1, following the fiscal year end.

A draft copy of the District's financial statements is expected to be received by the Norwalk Transit District by the end of October following the end of each fiscal year. The final issuance of the financial statements is expected no later than November 30 following the end of each fiscal year. These timelines will be extended during the initial audit year.

APPENDIX A1

FISCAL YEAR 2023 AUDIT REPORT

APPENDIX B

STANDARD FORM OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT

STANDARD FORM OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is dated as of the	_ day of	(Month) in the year 2025 by and
between the Norwalk Transit District, locat	e at 275 Wils	on Avenue, Norwalk, Connecticut,
hereinafter, referred to as the DISTRICT an	nd	
	, here	inafter, referred to as the CONTRACTOR.
The purpose of this Contract Agreement is a Therefore, the DISTRICT and the CONTR. hereinafter set forth, agree as follows:		anual Audits of District Financial Statements. onsideration of the mutual covenants

Article 1. SERVICE

The CONTRACTOR shall provide services as specified in the Technical Specifications of the Request for Proposals, Attachment A, and as described in the CONTRACTOR Work Program and Project Cost, Attachment B, which are a part hereof. The work is generally described as Annual Audit of Financial Statements for fiscal years 2025 through 2029.

The DISTRICT reserves the right to change or otherwise alter the services outlined in Attachments A and B upon fifteen (15) days written notice to the CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR agrees to implement those specified changes within a reasonable timeframe but in no case later than thirty (30) days after receipt of notice. The CONTRACTOR reserves the right to reject any change or service alteration proposed by the DISTRICT for good and compelling reasons and will notify the DISTRICT of said rejection within ten (10) days of receipt of notice.

Article 2. SUBCONTRACTING

The CONTRACTOR agrees not to subcontract for any of the services it is obligated to perform under this Agreement without the prior consent of the DISTRICT.

Article 3. CONTRACT TIME

3.1 The maximum term of this contract shall be for a period of three audit years from the date of commencement, with one additional two-year renewal option at the sole discretion of the District.

Article 4. CONTRACT PRICE

- 4.1 The DISTRICT shall pay the CONTRACTOR, for the performance of all services in accordance with the Project Pricing as stated in Attachment B. Attachment B is made a part of this contract.
- 4.2 The Contractor will be a firm fixed contract paid on the completion and acceptance of the audit. The DISTRICT shall process CONTRACTOR invoices and make payments within forty-five (45) days of an invoice due date.

Article 5. INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide and maintain the required insurance limits, as set forth in the following, to comply with the DISTRICT requirements. The DISTRICT shall be listed as an additional insured with exception of the Professional Liability Policy. The CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish to the DISTRICT a Certificate of Insurance on forms acceptable to the DISTRICT, fully executed by an insurance company or companies satisfactory to the DISTRICT, for the insurance policy or policies required below, which policy or policies shall be in accordance with the terms of said Certificate of Insurance. Each policy shall include a waiver of subrogation provision. Said certificate of insurance shall be provided by the CONTRACTOR with this signed contract. The insurance shall be maintained throughout the conduct of this work.

5.1 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR shall carry Commercial General Liability insurance, including Contractual Liability Insurance, providing for a total of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) coverage per occurrence for all the damages arising out of bodily injury, personal injury, property damage and contractual liability coverage for the indemnification obligations arising under this Agreement. The annual aggregate limit shall not be less than Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00).

5.2 AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE

The operation of all motor vehicles, including those hired or borrowed, used in connection with this Agreement shall be covered by Automobile Liability Insurance providing for a total limit of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) for all damages arising out of bodily injuries to or death of all persons in any one accident or occurrences, and for all damages arising out of injury to or destruction of property in any one accident or occurrence. In cases where an insurance policy shows an aggregate limit as part of the automobile liability coverage, the aggregate limit must be at least Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000.00).

5.3 PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY AND ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE

The CONTRACTOR and any approved subcontractors shall be required to carry Professional Liability and, Errors and Omissions insurance in a minimum amount of Two Million Dollars (\$2,000,000).

5.4 WORKER'S COMPENSATION

With respect to all operations the CONSULTANT and their approved subcontractors perform, the DISTRICT shall require that the CONTRACTOR and their approved subcontractors shall carry Worker's Compensation Insurance and as applicable insurance required by the laws of the State of Connecticut and the laws of the United States respectively.

Article 6. PROJECT MANAGER

Both the CONTRACTOR and the DISTRICT shall designate Project Managers for services provided under this Agreement. The Project Managers shall be responsible for overseeing the proper operation of the service. The DISTRICT has assigned the Chief Financial Officer to serve as the Project Manager for this project.

Article 7. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES, DUTIES, AND LIABILITIES

- 7.1 The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to provide an audit compliant with all regulatory guidance acceptable to federal and state funding sources.
- 7.2 The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all local, state, and federal laws and regulations.
- 7.3 The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, save harmless and defend the DISTRICT, and their respective officers, agents and employees against and from any and all damages, costs and expenses which they or any of them may suffer by, from or out of any and all claims arising out of or in connection with this contract, including but not limited to claims for payment for materials or labor used or employed in the execution of this contract, and also for injuries or damages received or sustained to person or property, or both, in consequence of or resulting from any work performed by said CONTRACTOR, or from any negligence in guarding said work, or from any act or omission of said CONTRACTOR, and said CONTRACTOR shall also indemnify and save harmless the DISTRICT from all claims under the Worker's Compensation Act arising under or out of this contract.

Article 8. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

In order to induce the DISTRICT to enter into this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR makes the following representations:

- 8.1 The CONTRACTOR has familiarized itself with the nature and extent of the Contract Documents, Work Program, and federal, state and local laws, ordinances rules and regulations that in any manner may affect cost, progress or performance of the work and agrees to comply with the same in its performance of this contract.
- 8.2 The CONTRACTOR has given the DISTRICT written notice of all conflicts, errors, discrepancies that he has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by DISTRICT is acceptable to the CONTRACTOR.

Article 9. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents which comprise the entire agreement between the DISTRICT and the CONTRACTOR are attached to this Agreement, made a part hereof and consists of the contents of the following:

The Complete Request for Proposal include the CONTRACTORS Response to the RFP Including Addendum Issued (Attachment A)

The Agreed upon Project Price (Attachment B)

Requirements of the State of Connecticut and Federal Transit Administration as may be applicable. (Attachment C)

RFP Forms (Attachment D)

Article 10. MISCELLANEOUS

- 10.1 The parties agree and understand that the CONTRACTOR is neither an employee nor agent of the DISTRICT and is an independent CONTRACTOR in the performance of its duties hereunder.
- 10.2 The failure of the DISTRICT to enforce at any time any of the provisions of this Agreement, or to exercise any option which is herein provided, or to require at any time performance by the CONTRACTOR of any of the provisions herein, shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the DISTRICT to thereafter enforce each and every such provision.
- 10.3 No member of or delegates to the Congress of the United States shall be admitted to any share or part of this Agreement, or to any benefit arising therefrom. The above also applies to the State of Connecticut Department of Transportation.
- No member, officer or employee of the DISTRICT or a local public body during his tenure or one year thereafter have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement, or the proceeds thereof.
- 10.5 The CONTRACTOR warrants that no person or selling agency has been retained to solicit or secure the Agreement for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, except bona fide employees or bona fide commercial or selling agencies maintained by the CONTRACTOR to secure business. For breach or violation, the DISTRICT shall have the right to annul or terminate the Agreement without liability.
- 10.6 No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in the Contract Documents will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically and without limitations, funds that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.
- 10.7 The DISTRICT and CONTRACTOR each bind itself, it's partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, it's partners, successors, assigns and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties to these present have hereunto set their hands and seals, the DISTRICT on the day and year hereinbefore first written and who hereby certifies under penalties of perjury that this CONTRACT is executed in accordance with all applicable municipal, state and federal laws having jurisdiction.

By:			
•	Matt Pentz	Date	
	Chief Executive Officer, Norwalk Trans	it District	
]	Page 18 of 104	

Firm Name:		
By:		
Signature	Date	
Printed Name:		
Title:		

^{*} If a corporation, attach to each signed copy of the contract a notarized copy of the vote of corporation authorizing the signatory to sign this contract.

APPENDIX C

REQUIREMENTS OF THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION

AND

STATE OF CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Federal Clauses

for

Federal Contracts



Prepared by the Norwalk Transit District

Date: December 13, 2024

Table of Contents

Overview: All Federal Clauses in this document apply to this solicitation and subsequent award, in addition to the *Terms and Conditions* specified in this solicitation. By submitting a response to this solicitation, the Bidder is agreeing to all Federal Clauses included in this document.

<u>Instructions</u>: Review all the Federal Clauses and sign the Federal Clauses that require a "Bidder Signature". Bidders *must attach* this Federal Clauses document to the bid submission, along with the required signatures specified in the table below.

No.	TITLE	BIDDER SIGNATURE REQUIRED
1	SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES	-
2	LOBBYING	YES
3	GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION	YES
4	TAX LIABILITY CERTIFICATION	YES
5	PROHIBITION ON PROVIDING OR USING CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT	YES
6	NOTIFICATION TO FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA)	-
7	DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)	-
8	FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS	-
9	CHARTER BUS REQUIREMENTS	N/A
10	SCHOOL BUS REQUIREMENTS	N/A
11	CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS	N/A
12	SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS	N/A
13	ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS	-
14	CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS	-
15	ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS	-
16	FEDERAL CHANGES	-
17	BONDING REQUIREMENTS	N/A
18	CLEAN AIR	-
19	RECYCLED PRODUCTS	N/A
20	DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	N/A
21	CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT	N/A
22	EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY	-
23	NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES	-
24	PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS	-
25	TERMINATION	-
26	PRIVACY ACT	-
27	CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS	-
28	BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION	-
29	PATENT AND RIGHTS IN DATA	N/A
30	TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS	N/A

31	INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS	-
32	DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING	N/A
33	SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES	-
34	ADA ACCESS	-
35	VETERANS EMPLOYMENT	N/A
36	TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS	-

1. SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

FTA Master Agreement

- (a) *Types of Information*. To the extent required under federal law, the State, as the Recipient, agrees to provide the following information about federal assistance awarded for its State Program, Project, or related activities:
 - (1) The Identification of FTA as the federal agency providing the federal assistance for a State Program or Project;
 - (2) The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the federal assistance for a State Program or Project is authorized; and
 - (3) The amount of federal assistance FTA has provided for a State Program or Project.
- (b) Documents. The State agrees to provide the information required under this provision in the following documents: (1) applications for federal assistance, (2) requests for proposals or solicitations, (3) forms, (4) notifications, (5) press releases, and (6) other publications.

2. LOBBYING 31 U.S.C. 1352 49 CFR Part 19 49 CFR Part 20

<u>Applicability to Contracts</u>: The Lobbying requirements apply to Construction/Architectural and Engineering/Acquisition of Rolling Stock/Professional Service Contract/Operational Service Contract/Turnkey contracts over \$100,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The Lobbying requirements mandate the maximum flow down, pursuant to Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. § 1352(b)(5) and 49 C.F.R. Part 19, Appendix A, Section 7.

<u>Mandatory Clause/Language</u>: Clause and specific language therein are mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A. Modifications have been made to the Clause pursuant to Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.]

Lobbying Certification and Disclosure of Lobbying Activities for Third Party contractors are mandated by 31 U.S.C. 1352(b)(5), as amended by Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, and DOT implementing regulation, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," at 49 CFR § 20.110(d)

Language in Lobbying Certification is mandated by 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, Section 7, which provides that contractors file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A.

Use of "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," Standard Form-LLL set forth in Appendix B of 49 CFR Part 20, as amended by "Government wide Guidance For New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96) is mandated by 49 CFR Part 20, Appendix A.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995, P.L. 104-65 [to be codified at 2 U.S.C. § 1601, et seq.] - Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$50,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying." Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31

U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient.

APPENDIX A, 49 CFR PART 20--CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements

(To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding \$100,000)

The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- A. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- B. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of

Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96). Note: Language in paragraph (2) herein has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 (P.L. 104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq .)]

C. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

[Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails to file or amend a required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such expenditure or failure.]

The Contractor,			certifies or affirms the truthfulness	
and accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor				
understands and agre	es that the provision	ns of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., a	pply to this certification and	
disclosure, if any				
Date				
Name of Contractor's Au Official	ıthorized			
Signature of Contractor's Official	s Authorized			
Title of Contractor's Aut Official	horized			
Company Name				

3. GOVERNMENT-WIDE DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

CFR part 180

CFR part 1200

CFR § 200.213

CFR part 200 Appendix II (I) Executive Order 12549

Executive Order 12689

Background and Applicability

A contract award (of any tier) in an amount expected to equal or exceed \$25,000 or a contract award at any tier for a federally required audit (irrespective of the contract amount) must not be made to parties listed on the government-wide exclusions in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. part 180. The Excluded Parties List System in SAM contains the names of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549.

Recipients, contractors, and subcontractors (at any level) that enter into covered transactions are required to verify that the entity (as well as its principals and affiliates) with which they propose to contract or subcontract is not excluded or disqualified. This is done by: (a) checking the SAM exclusions; (b) collecting a certification from that person; or (c) adding a clause or condition to the contract or subcontract.

Flow Down

Recipients, contractors, and subcontractors who enter into covered transactions with a participant at the next lower level, must require that participant to: (a) comply with subpart C of 2 C.F.R. part 180, as supplemented by 2 C.F.R. part 1200; and (b) pass the requirement to comply with subpart C of 2 C.F.R. part 180 to each person with whom the participant enters into a covered transaction at the next lower tier.

Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion

The Contractor shall comply and facilitate compliance with U.S. DOT regulations, "Nonprocurement Suspension and Debarment," 2 C.F.R. part 1200, which adopts and supplements the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (U.S. OMB) "Guidelines to Agencies on Governmentwide Debarment and Suspension (Nonprocurement)," 2 C.F.R. part 180.

These provisions apply to each contract at any tier of \$25,000 or more, and to each contract at any tier for a federally required audit (irrespective of the contract amount), and to each contract at any tier that must be approved by an FTA official irrespective of the contract amount. As such, the Contractor shall verify that its principals, affiliates, and subcontractors are eligible to participate in this federally funded contract and are not presently declared by any Federal department or agency to be:

- A. Debarred from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- B. Suspended from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- C. Proposed for debarment from participation in any federally assisted Award;
- D. Declared ineligible to participate in any federally assisted Award;
- E. Voluntarily excluded from participation in any federally assisted Award; or
- F. Disqualified from participation in ay federally assisted Award.

By signing and submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder or proposer certifies as follows:

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact relied upon by the Recipient. If it is later determined

by the Recipient that the bidder or proposer knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to the Recipient, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. part 180, subpart C, as supplemented by 2 C.F.R. part 1200, while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

Date	
Name of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Title of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Company Name	

4. TAX LIABILITY CERTIFICATION

This certificate applies to all contracts. Offers that do not include this completed certification will be rejected as nonresponsive.

The Proposer certifies that:

- 1. It has no unpaid federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability;
- 2. It has not been convicted of a felony criminal violation under any federal law within the preceding 24 months; and
- 3. It shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all subcontractors and material suppliers at all tiers, and that all subcontractors and material suppliers shall certify and disclose accordingly.

The Proposer certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of the contents of the statements submitted on or with this certification. In addition, the Proposer understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et al. are applicable to this certification.

Date	
Name of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Title of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Company Name	

5. <u>PROHIBITION ON PROVIDING OR USING CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT</u>

Section 889

Consistent with Section 889 of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019, Pub. L. 115-232 (Aug. 13, 2018), CONTRACTOR must not:

- (a) provide "covered telecommunications equipment or services" (as that term is defined in Section 889 of the Act) as part of its performance under this Contract, if such equipment or services will be used as a substantial or essential component of any system or as critical technology as part of any system; or
- (b) use such covered telecommunication equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system or as critical technology as part of any system, regardless of whether that use is in connection with performance of work under this Contract, subject only to the exception that covered telecommunications equipment or services may be provided or used if the equipment or services cannot route or redirect user data traffic or permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.

Date	
Name of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Title of Contractor's Authorized Official	
Company Name	

6. NOTIFICATION TO FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA)

If a current or prospective legal matter that may affect the Federal Government emerges, the Recipient must promptly notify the FTA Chief Counsel and FTA Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Recipient is located. The Recipient must include a similar notification requirement in its Third-Party Agreements and must require each Third Party Participant to include an equivalent provision in its subagreements at every tier, for any agreement that is a "covered transaction" according to 2 C.F.R. §§180.220 and 1200.220.

- 1) The types of legal matters that require notification include, but are not limited to, a major dispute, breach, default, litigation, or naming the Federal Government as a party to litigation or a legal disagreement in any forum for any reason.
- 2) Matters that may affect the Federal Government include, but are not limited to, the Federal Government's interests in the Award, the accompanying Underlying Agreement, and any Amendments thereto, or the Federal Government's administration or enforcement of federal laws, regulations, and requirements.
- 3) The Recipient must promptly notify the U.S. DOT Inspector General in addition to the FTA Chief Counsel or Regional Counsel for the Region in which the Recipient is located, if the Recipient has knowledge of potential fraud, waste, or abuse occurring on a Project receiving assistance from FTA. The notification provision applies if a person has or may have submitted a false claim under the False Claims Act, 31 U.S.C. § 3729 et seq., or has or may have committed a criminal or civil violation of law pertaining to such matters as fraud, conflict of interest, bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct. This responsibility occurs whether the Project is subject to this 18

Agreement or another agreement between the Recipient and FTA, or an agreement involving a principal, officer, employee, agent, or Third Party Participant of the Recipient. It also applies to subcontractors at any tier. Knowledge, as used in this paragraph, includes, but is not limited to, knowledge of a criminal or civil investigation by a Federal, state, or local law enforcement or other investigative agency, a criminal indictment or civil complaint, or probable cause that could support a criminal indictment, or any other credible information in the possession of the Recipient.

7. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 49 CFR Part 26

Applicability to Contracts: The Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) program provides guidance to grantees on the use of overall and contract goals, requirement to include DBE provisions in subcontracts, evaluating DBE participation where specific contract goals have been set, reporting requirements, and replacement of DBE subcontractors. Additionally, the DBE program dictates payment terms and conditions (including limitations on retainage) applicable to all subcontractors regardless of whether they are DBE firms or not.

The DBE program applies to all U.S. DOT- assisted contracting activities. A formal clause such as that below **must** be included in all contracts <u>and</u> subcontracts above the micro-purchase level (\$10,000 except for construction contracts over \$2,000).

Clause Language

Each contract the **Recipient** signs with a contractor (and each subcontract the prime contractor signs with a subcontractor) must include the following Federal Clause language:

- a. This contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, *Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs*. The national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) is 10%. For this procurement, a separate contract specific goal has not been established.
- b. The **RECIPIENT**, contractor or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of this U.S. DOT-assisted contract. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy as the **RECIPIENT** deems appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to:
 - i. Withholding monthly progress payments
 - ii. Assessing sanctions
 - iii. Liquidated damages, and/or
 - iv. Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-responsible.
- c. The contractor shall utilize the specific DBEs listed to perform the work and supply the materials for which each is listed unless the contractor obtains written consent from the **RECIPIENT**.
- d. The contractor shall not be entitled to any payment for work or material unless it is performed or supplied by the DBEs as listed in its written documentation of its commitment to the **RECIPIENT**.
- e. The contractor is required to pay subcontractors for satisfactory performance of their contracts no later than 10 calendar days from receipt of each payment the **RECIPIENT** makes to the contractor.
 - The contractor may withhold payment to a subcontractor if, within 10 calendar days of receipt of that progress payment, the contractor provides written notification to the subcontractor and the **RECIPIENT** documenting "just cause" for withholding payment. The contractor is not allowed to withhold retainage from payments due subcontractors.
- f. The contractor will be required to report its DBE participation obtained throughout the period of performance.
- g. The contractor shall not terminate a DBE subcontractor listed in its written documentation of its commitment to the **RECIPIENT** to use a DBE subcontractor (or an approved substitute DBE firm) without the **RECIPIENT's** prior written consent per 49 CFR Part 26.53(f). This includes, but is not limited to, instances in which a prime contractor seeks to perform work originally designated for a DBE subcontractor with its own forces or those of an affiliate, a non-DBE firm, or with another DBE firm.
- h. The contractor must promptly notify the **RECIPIENT** whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work. The contractor must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work under contract as the DBE that was terminated, to the extent needed to meet the contract goal established for the procurement. The good faith efforts shall be documented by the contractor.
- i. The contractor may provide written consent only if the **RECIPIENT** agrees, for reasons stated in the concurrence document, that it has good cause to terminate the DBE Firm. For purposes of this paragraph, good cause includes the following circumstances:
 - I. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to execute a written contract.
 - II. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to perform the work of its subcontract in a way consistent with normal industry standards. Provided, however, that good cause does not exist if the

- failure or refusal of the DBE subcontractor to perform its work on the subcontract results from the bad faith or discriminatory action of the prime contractor.
- III. The listed DBE subcontractor fails or refuses to meet the prime contractor's reasonable, nondiscriminatory bond requirements.
- IV. The listed DBE subcontractor becomes bankrupt, insolvent, or exhibits credit unworthiness;
- V. The listed DBE subcontractor is ineligible to work on public works projects because of suspension and debarment proceedings pursuant 2 CFR Parts 180, 215 and 1,200 or applicable state law;
- VI. **RECIPIENT** determined that the listed DBE subcontractor is not a responsible contractor;
- VII. The listed DBE subcontractor voluntarily withdraws from the project and provides to you written notice of its withdrawal;
- VIII. The listed DBE is ineligible to receive DBE credit for the type of work required;
- IX. A DBE owner dies or becomes disabled with the result that the listed DBE contractor is unable to complete its work on the contract;
- X. Other documented good cause that compels the termination of the DBE subcontractor. Provided, that good cause does not exist if the prime contractor seeks to terminate a DBE it relied upon to obtain the contract so that the prime contractor can self-perform the work for which the DBE contractor was engaged or so that the prime contractor can substitute another DBE or non-DBE contractor after contract award.
- j. Before transmitting to the **RECIPIENT** its request to terminate and/or substitute a DBE subcontractor, the prime contractor must give notice in writing to the DBE subcontractor, with a copy to the **RECIPIENT**, of its intent to request to terminate and/or substitute, and the reason for the request.

Commercially Useful Function Monitoring

Per 49 CFR 26.55 A DBE performs a commercially useful function (CUF) when the DBE is responsible for execution of their work under the contract and the DBE is carrying out its responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising their work. A DBE firm does not perform a CUF if the DBE role is limited to that of an extra participant in a transaction, contract, or project through which funds are passed in order to obtain the appearance of DBE participation.

On federal aid contracts, the signature of the Project Manager on the Completion Certificate serves as certification that the Project Engineer and/or project staff effectually monitored the DBE work performance and contract records to verify that the DBE firms were responsible for the execution of their work under the contract having performed a CUF.

8. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS

49 U.S.C. §40118 41 CFR Part 301-10

Applicability to Contracts

The Fly America requirements apply to the transportation of persons or property, by air, between a place in the U.S. and a place outside the U.S., or between places outside the U.S., when the FTA will participate in the costs of such air transportation. Transportation on a foreign air carrier is permissible when provided by a foreign air carrier under a code share agreement when the ticket identifies the U.S. air carrier's designator code and flight number.

Transportation by a foreign air carrier is also permissible if there is a bilateral or multilateral air transportation agreement to which the U.S. Government and a foreign government are parties and which the Federal DOT has determined meets the requirements of the Fly America Act.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under 10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirements</u>: The Fly America requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors, who are responsible for ensuring that lower tier contractors and subcontractors are in compliance.

Model Clause/Language: The relevant statutes and regulations do not mandate any specified clause or language. FTA proposes the following language.

<u>Fly America Requirements</u> - The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and subrecipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act.

The Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. The Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

- CHARTER BUS REQUIREMENTS N/A
 SCHOOL BUS REQUIREMENTS N/A
- 11. CARGO PREFERENCE REQUIREMENTS N/A
 - 12. SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS N/A
- 13. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

42 U.S.C. 6321 et seq. 2 CFR Part 1201

Applicability to Contracts: The Energy Conservation requirements are applicable to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirements</u>: The Energy Conservation requirements extend to all Third-Party contractors and their contracts at every tier and subrecipients and their subagreements at every tier.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: No specific clause is recommended in the regulations because the Energy Conservation requirements are so dependent on the state energy conservation plan. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Energy Conservation - The contractor agrees to comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act.

14. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

33 U.S.C. 1251

<u>Applicability to Contracts</u>: The Clean Water requirements apply to each contract and subcontract which exceeds \$150,000.

Flow Down Requirements: The Clean Water requirements flow down to FTA recipients and subrecipients at every tier.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: While no mandatory clause is contained in the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, the following language developed by FTA contains all the mandatory requirements.

Clean Water -

- A. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et <u>seq</u>. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.
- B. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$50,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

15. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS

49 U.S.C. 5325 18 CFR 18.36 (i) 49 CFR 633.17

Applicability to Contracts: Reference Chart "Requirements for Access to Records and Reports by Type of Contracts"

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

Flow Down Requirement: FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: The specified language is not mandated by the statutes or regulations referenced, but the language provided paraphrases the statutory or regulatory language.

Access to Records - The following access to records requirements apply to this Contract:

- A. Where the Purchaser is not a State but a local government and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 18 C. F. R. 18.36(i), the Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives including any PMO Contractor access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.
- B. Where the Purchaser is a State and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 633.17, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator or his authorized representatives, including any PMO Contractor, access to the Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311. By definition, a major capital project excludes contracts of less than the simplified acquisition threshold currently set at \$250,000.
- C. Where the Purchaser enters into a negotiated contract for other than a small purchase or under the simplified acquisition threshold and is an institution of higher education, a hospital or other non-profit organization and is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 C.F.R. 19.48, Contractor agrees to provide the Purchaser, FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized representatives with access to any books, documents, papers and record of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

- D. Where any Purchaser which is the FTA Recipient or a subgrantee of the FTA Recipient in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 5325(a) enters into a contract for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1) through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make available records related to the contract to the Purchaser, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- E. The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- F. The Contractor agrees to maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until the Purchaser, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto. Reference 18 CFR 18.39(i)(11).
- G. FTA does not require the inclusion of these requirements in subcontracts.

REQUIREMENTS FOR ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS BY TYPES OF CONTRACT

	Operational Service Contract	Turnkey Contract	Construction Contract	Arch. or Engineering Contract	Rolling Stock Contract	Professional Service Contract
State Grantees						
Contracts below Simplified Acquisition Threshold (Small Purchase) (\$250,000)	None	Those imposed on state pass thru to Contractor	None	None	None	None
Contracts above \$100,000/Capit al Projects	None unless ¹ non-competitive award	Those imposed on state pass thru to contractor	Yes, if non- competitive award or if funded thru ² 5307, 5309,	None unless non- competitive award	None unless non- competitive award	None unless non- competitive award
Non-State Grantees						
Contracts below Simplified Acquisition Threshold (Small Purchase) (\$250,000)	Yes	Those imposed on non-state Grantee pass thru to Contractor	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Contracts above \$100,000/Capital Projects	Yes	Those imposed on non-state Grantee pass thru to Contractor	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes

Sources of Authority:49 USC 5325 (a), 49 CFR 633.17, 18 CFR 18.36 (i)

16. FEDERAL CHANGES

2 CFR Part 1201

Applicability to Contracts: The Federal Changes requirement applies to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The Federal Changes requirement flows down appropriately to each applicable changed requirement.

Model Clause/Language: No specific language is mandated. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Federal Changes - Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the <u>Master Agreement</u> between Purchaser and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this contract.

Contractor's failure to so comply shall constitute a material breach of this contract.

17. BONDING REQUIREMENTS N/A

18. CLEAN AIR

42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq 40 CFR 15.61 2 CFR Part 1201

<u>Applicability to Contracts</u>: The Clean Air requirements apply to all contracts exceeding \$150,000, including indefinite quantities where the amount is expected to exceed \$150,000 in any year.

Flow Down Requirement: The Clean Air requirements flow down to all subcontracts which exceed \$150.000.

Model Clauses/Language: No specific language is required. FTA has proposed the following language.

- A. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.
- B. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

19. <u>RECYCLED PRODUCTS</u> N/A 20. <u>DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS</u> N/A

21. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT N/A

22. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 41 CFR §60-1.4

<u>Applicability to Contracts:</u> Applicable to all contracts except micro-purchases (except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases:</u> Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases.

<u>Flow Down Requirement:</u> Not required by statute or regulation for either primary contractors or subcontractors, this concept should flow down to all levels to clarify, to all parties to the contract, that the Federal Government does not have contractual liability to third parties, absent specific written consent.

Model Clause/Language:

Federal Requirements and Guidance. The Recipient agrees to prohibit, and assures that each Third Party Participant will prohibit, discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, and:

- A. Comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq.,
- B. Facilitate compliance with Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246, Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note, and as further amended by Executive Order 13672, "Further Amendments to Executive Order 11478, Equal Employment Opportunity in the Federal Government, and Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity," July 21, 2014,
- C. Comply with Federal transit law, specifically 49 U.S.C. § 5332, as provided in section 13.a of this Master Agreement, and
- D. Follow Federal guidance pertaining to Equal Employment Opportunity laws and regulations, and prohibitions against discrimination on the basis of disability,

Specifics. The Recipient agrees:

- A. Prohibited Discrimination. As provided by Executive Order 11246, as amended, and as specified by U.S. Department of Labor regulations, to ensure that applicants for employment are employed and employees are treated during employment without discrimination on the basis of their:
 - 1. Race.
 - 2. Color,
 - 3. Religion,
 - 4. National origin,
 - 5. Disability,
 - 6. Age,
 - 7. Sexual origin,
 - 8. Gender identity, or
 - 9. Status as a parent, and
- B. Affirmative Action. Take affirmative action that includes, but is not limited to:

- 1. Recruitment advertising, recruitment, and employment,
- 2. Rates of pay and other forms of compensation,
- 3. Selection for training, including apprenticeship, and upgrading, and
- 4. Transfers, demotions, layoffs, and terminations, but
- C. Indian Tribe. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, exempts Indian Tribes under the definition of "Employer," and **Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities.**

In addition to the foregoing, when undertaking "construction" as recognized by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL), the Recipient agrees to comply, and assures that each Third-Party Participant will comply, with:

- A. U.S. DOL regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity,
 - Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. chapter 60, and
- B. Executive Order 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246, Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note.

23. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES

Applicability to Contracts: Applicable to all contracts

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: Not required by statute or regulation for either primary contractors or subcontractors, this concept should flow down to all levels to clarify, to all parties to the contract, that the Federal Government does not have contractual liability to third parties, absent specific written consent.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: While no specific language is required, FTA has developed the following language. No Obligation by the Federal Government.

- A. The Purchaser and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to the Purchaser, Contractor, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the underlying contract.
- B. The Contractor agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

24. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND RELATED ACTS

31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq. 49 CFR Part 31 18 U.S.C. 1001 49 U.S.C. 5307

Applicability to Contracts: These requirements are applicable to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: These requirements flow down to contractors and subcontractors who make, present, or submit covered claims and statements.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: These requirements have no specified language, so FTA proffers the following language. Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts.

A. The Contractor acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. § § 3801 et seq . and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this Project. Upon execution of the underlying contract, the Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying contract or the FTA assisted project for which this contract work is being performed. In addition to other penalties that may be applicable,

the Contractor further acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the Contractor to the extent the Federal

Government deems appropriate.

- B. The Contractor also acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government under a contract connected with a project that is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance originally awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 U.S.C. § 5307, the Government reserves the right to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. § 1001 and 49 U.S.C. § 5307(n)(1) on the Contractor, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- C. The Contractor agrees to include the above two clauses in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. It is further agreed that the clauses shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

25. TERMINATION

2 CFR Part 1201 2 CFR 200

Applicability to Contracts: All contracts (with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education,) in excess of \$10,000 shall contain suitable provisions for termination by the grantee including the manner by which it will be affected and the basis for settlement. (For contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education the threshold is \$250,000.) In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the contractor.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The termination requirements flow down to all contracts in excess of \$10,000, with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher learning.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: FTA does not prescribe the form or content of such clauses. The following are suggestions of clauses to be used in different types of contracts:

- A. Termination for Convenience (General Provision) The (**Recipient**) may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Government's best interest. The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to (**Recipient**) to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the (**Recipient**), the Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the (Recipient) directs.
- B. Termination for Default [Breach or Cause] (General Provision) If the Contractor does not deliver supplies in accordance with the contract delivery schedule, or, if the contract is for services, the Contractor fails to perform in the manner called for in the contract, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of the contract, the (Recipient) may terminate this contract for default. Termination shall be affected by serving a notice of termination on the contractor setting forth the manner in which the Contractor is in default. The contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in the contract.
 - If it is later determined by the **(Recipient)** that the Contractor had an excusable reason for not performing, such as a strike, fire, or flood, events which are not the fault of or are beyond the control of the Contractor, the (Recipient), after setting up a new delivery of performance schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for convenience.
- C. Opportunity to Cure (General Provision) The **(Recipient)** in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor [an appropriately short period of time] in which to cure the defect. In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions.
 - If Contractor fails to remedy to (Recipient)'s satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or
 - conditions of this Contract within **[ten (10) days**] after receipt by Contractor of written notice from (**Recipient)** setting forth the nature of said breach or default, (Recipient) shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any

- way operate to preclude (Recipient) from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.
- D. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that (**Recipient**) elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by (**Recipient**) shall not limit (**Recipient**)'s remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.
- E. Termination for Convenience (Professional or Transit Service Contracts) The **(Recipient)**, by written notice, may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, when it is in the Government's interest. If this contract is terminated, the Recipient shall be liable only for payment under the payment provisions of this contract for services rendered before the effective date of termination.
- F. Termination for Default (Supplies and Service) If the Contractor fails to deliver supplies or to perform the services within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the (**Recipient**) may terminate this contract for default. The (**Recipient**) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for supplies delivered and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth in this contract.
 - If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Recipient.
- G. Termination for Default (Transportation Services) If the Contractor fails to pick up the commodities or to perform the services, including delivery services, within the time specified in this contract or any extension or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the (**Recipient**) may terminate this contract for default. The (**Recipient**) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of default. The Contractor will only be paid the contract price for services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in this contract.
 - If this contract is terminated while the Contractor has possession of Recipient goods, the Contractor shall, upon direction of the **(Recipient)**, protect and preserve the goods until surrendered to the Recipient or its agent. The Contractor and **(Recipient)** shall agree on payment for the preservation and protection of goods. Failure to agree on an amount will be resolved under the Dispute clause.
 - If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the **(Recipient).**
- H. Termination for Default (Construction) If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, the (Recipient) may terminate this contract for default. The (Recipient) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. In this event, the Recipient may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to the Recipient resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Recipient in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if-

- 1. The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the Recipient, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Recipient, epidemics, guarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes; and
- 2. The contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies the (Recipient) in writing of the causes of delay. If in the judgment of the (Recipient), the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of the (Recipient) shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.
 - If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Recipient.
- I. Termination for Convenience or Default (Architect and Engineering) The (Recipient) may terminate this contract in whole or in part, for the Recipient's convenience or because of the failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations. The (Recipient) shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice, the Contractor shall (1) immediately discontinue all services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise), and (2) deliver to the Contracting Officer all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this contract, whether completed or in process.
 - If the termination is for the convenience of the Recipient, the Contracting Officer shall make an equitable adjustment in the contract price but shall allow no anticipated profit on unperformed services.
 - If the termination is for failure of the Contractor to fulfill the contract obligations, the Recipient may complete the work by contact or otherwise and the Contractor shall be liable for any additional cost incurred by the Recipient.
 - If, after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of the Recipient.
- J. Termination for Convenience of Default (Cost-Type Contracts) The (Recipient) may terminate this contract, or any portion of it, by serving a notice or termination on the Contractor. The notice shall state whether the termination is for convenience of the (Recipient) or for the default of the Contractor. If the termination is for default, the notice shall state the manner in which the contractor has failed to perform the requirements of the contract. The Contractor shall account for any property in its possession paid for from funds received from the (Recipient), or property supplied to the Contractor by the (Recipient). If the termination is for default, the (Recipient) may fix the fee, if the contract provides for a fee, to be paid the contractor in proportion to the value, if any, of work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to the (Recipient) and the parties shall negotiate the termination settlement to be paid the Contractor.

If the termination is for the convenience of the (Recipient), the Contractor shall be paid its contract closeout costs, and a fee, if the contract provided for payment of a fee, in proportion to the work performed up to the time of termination. If, after serving a notice of termination for default, the (Recipient) determines that the Contractor has an excusable reason for not performing, such as strike, fire, flood, events which are not the fault of and are beyond the control of the contractor, the (Recipient), after setting up a new work schedule, may allow the Contractor to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for convenience.

26. PRIVACY ACT

5 U.S.C. 552

<u>Applicability to Contracts</u>: When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The Federal Privacy Act requirements flow down to each Third Party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: The text of the following clause has not been mandated by statute or specific regulation, but has been developed by FTA.

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements - The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

- A. The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.
- B. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

27. CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS

29 U.S.C. § 623, 42 U.S.C. § 2000 42 U.S.C. § 6102, 42 U.S.C. § 12112 42 U.S.C. § 12132, 49 U.S.C. § 5332 29 CFR Part 1630, 41 CFR Parts 60 et seq.

Applicability to Contracts: The Civil Rights Requirements apply to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The Civil Rights requirements flow down to all third-party contractors and their contracts at every tier.

Model Clause/Language: The following clause was predicated on language contained at 49 CFR Part 19, Appendix A, but FTA has shortened the lengthy text.

Civil Rights - The following requirements apply to the underlying contract:

The following requirements apply to the underlying contract:

- A. Nondiscrimination In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- B. <u>Equal Employment Opportunity</u> The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the underlying contract:
 - 1) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to comply with all
 - applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age.

Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

- 2) Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29
 U.S.C. § § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, the Contractor agrees to refrain
 - from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- 3) <u>Disabilities</u> In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

C. The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties.

28. BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

2 CFR Part 1201

FTA Circular 4220.1F

<u>Applicability to Contracts</u>: All contracts in excess of \$250,000 shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. This may include provisions for bonding, penalties for late or inadequate performance, retained earnings, liquidated damages or other appropriate measures.

Flow Down: The Breaches and Dispute Resolutions requirements flow down to all tiers.

<u>Model Clauses/Language</u>: FTA does not prescribe the form or content of such provisions. What provisions are developed will depend on the circumstances and the type of contract. Recipients should consult legal counsel in developing appropriate clauses. The following clauses are examples of provisions from various FTA Third Party contracts.

- A. **Disputes** Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative of the Recipient. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within **[ten (10)]** days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to the Recipient.
 - In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of the Recipient shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.
- B. **Performance During Dispute** Unless otherwise directed by **(Recipient)**, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.
- C. Claims for Damages Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefor shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.
- D. Remedies Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between the (Recipient) and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which the (Recipient) is located.
- E. **Rights and Remedies** The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the (Recipient), (Architect) or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

29. PATENT AND RIGHTS IN DATA N/A

30. TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS N/A 31. INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) TERMS

FTA Circular 4220.1F

Applicability to Contracts: The incorporation of FTA terms applies to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The incorporation of FTA terms has unlimited flow down.

Model Clause/Language: FTA has developed the following incorporation of terms language:

Incorporation of Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Terms - The preceding provisions include, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the preceding contract provisions.

All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in <u>FTA Circular 4220.1F</u> are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Agreement. The Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any (name of grantee) requests which would cause (name of grantee) to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.

32. DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING N/A

33. SAFE OPERATION OF MOTOR VEHICLES

23 U.S.C. part 402
Executive Order No. 13043 Executive Order No. 13513
U.S. DOT Order No. 3902.10

Applicability to Contracts

The Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles requirements apply to all federally funded Third Party contracts. In compliance with Federal Executive Order No. 13043, "Increasing Seat Belt Use in the United States," April 16, 1997, 23 U.S.C. Section 402 note, FTA encourages each Third Party contractor to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate company owned, rented, or personally operated vehicles, and to include this provision in each Third Party subcontract involving the project. Additionally, recipients are required by FTA to include a Distracted Driving clause that addresses distracted driving, including text messaging in each of its Third-Party agreements supported with Federal assistance.

<u>Flow Down Requirements:</u> The Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles requirements flow down to all Third-Party contractors at every tier.

<u>Model Clause/Language</u>: There is no required language for the Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles clause. Recipients can draw on the following language for inclusion in their federally funded procurements.

Safe Operation of Motor Vehicles Requirements -

<u>Seat Belt Use</u>: The Contractor is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that operate company-owned vehicles, company A-60 rented vehicles, or personally operated vehicles. The terms "company-owned" and "company-leased" refer to vehicles owned or leased either by the Contractor or AGENCY.

<u>Distracted Driving</u>: The Contractor agrees to adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers, including policies to ban text messaging while using an electronic device supplied by an employer, and driving a vehicle the driver owns or rents, a vehicle Contactor owns, leases, or rents, or a privately- owned vehicle when on official business in connection with the work performed under this agreement.

34. ADA ACCESS

49 USC 531 (d)

<u>Applicability to Contracts</u>: The ADA Access Requirements apply to all contracts.

<u>Applicability to Micro-Purchases</u>: Micro-purchases are defined as those purchases under \$10,000. These requirements do not apply to micro-purchases; except for construction contracts over \$2,000.

<u>Flow Down Requirement</u>: The ADA Access Requirements flow down to all Third-Party contractors and their contracts at every tier.

<u>Model Clause/Language:</u> ADA Access. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) prohibits discrimination and ensures equal opportunity and access for persons with disabilities.

Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor shall comply with 49 USC 5301(d), stating Federal policy that the elderly and persons with disabilities have the same rights as other persons to use mass transportation services and facilities and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy. Contractor shall also comply with all applicable requirements of Sec. 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (1973), as amended, 29 USC 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 USC 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments thereto.

35. <u>VETERANS EMPLOYMENT</u> N/A 36. <u>NO FEDERAL GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES</u>

The **AGENCY** and Contractor acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation of this Contract, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a party to this Contract and shall not be subject to any

obligations or liabilities to the **AGENCY**, Contractor or any other party (whether or not a party to that Contract) pertaining to any matter resulting from the Contract.

Contractor shall include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by the FTA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions.

37. TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS

Contractor and its subcontractors or their employees shall not:

- A. Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the Contract Term;
- B. Procure a commercial sex act during the Contract Term; or
- C. Use forced labor in the performance of the Contract. Contractor shall inform **AGENCY** immediately of any information Contractor receives from any source alleging a violation of a prohibition in this section. **AGENCY** may terminate this Contract for any violation of this section; such right of termination is in addition to all other remedies for noncompliance that are available to the **AGENCY**

REQUIREMENTS OF NTD AND THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

The Agreement between the Norwalk Transit District and the Connecticut Department of Transportation has specific provisions that are passed on to all third-party contractors including, but not limited to, Civil Rights, Nondiscrimination, Affirmative Action/Equal Employment Opportunities, Disadvantaged Business Enterprise, Governors' Executive Orders, Code of Ethics, and all applicable federal regulations. These provisions and all applicable appendices of the Agreement are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

State Requirements:

- State of Connecticut Code of Ethics
- Connecticut Required Contract/Agreement Provisions Specific Equal Employment Opportunity Responsibilities
- Executive Orders (3, 16, 17)
- Jurisdiction and Forum Language
- Audit and Inspection of Plants, Places of Business, and Records
- Environmental Law and Compliance
- ➤ Insurance Types and Thresholds
- NTD Code of Ethics

Signed:	
Authorized Corporate Official	Date
Signed:	
Authorized Corporate Official	Date

THIS FORM IS A REQUIRED SUBMITTAL TO BE RETURNED WITH YOUR RESPONSE.



CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

POLICY STATEMENT

SUBJECT: Code of Ethics Policy

June 1, 2007

The purpose of this policy is to establish and maintain high standards of honesty, integrity, and quality of performance for all employees of the Department of Transportation ("DOT" or "Department"). Individuals in government service have positions of significant trust and responsibility that require them to adhere to the highest ethical standards. Standards that might be acceptable in other public or private organizations are not necessarily acceptable for the DOT.

It is expected that all DOT employees will comply with this policy as well as the Code of Ethics for Public Officials, and strive to avoid even the appearance of impropriety in their relationships with members of the public, other agencies, private vendors, consultants, and contractors. This policy is, as is permitted by law, in some cases stricter than the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. Where that is true, employees are required to comply with the more stringent DOT policy.

The Code of Ethics for Public Officials is State law and governs the conduct of all State employees and public officials regardless of the agency in which they serve. The entire Code, as well as a summary of its provisions, may be found at the Office of State Ethics' web site: www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp. For formal and informal interpretations of the Code of Ethics, DOT employees should contact the Office of State Ethics or the DOT's Ethics Compliance Officer or her designee.

All State agencies are required by law to have an ethics policy statement. Additionally, all State agencies are required by law to have an Ethics Liaison or Ethics Compliance Officer. The DOT, because of the size and scope of its procurement activities, has an Ethics Compliance Officer who is responsible for the Department's: development of ethics policies; coordination of ethics training programs; and monitoring of programs for agency compliance with its ethics policies and the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. At least annually, the Ethics Compliance Officer shall provide ethics training to agency personnel involved in contractor selection, evaluation, and supervision. A DOT employee who has a question or is unsure about the provisions of this policy, or who would like assistance contacting the Office of State Ethics, should contact the Ethics Compliance Officer or her designee.

The DOT Ethics Compliance Officer is:

To contact the Office of State Ethics:

Denise Rodosevich, Managing Attorney Office of Legal Services

For questions, contact the Ethics Compliance Officer's Designee: Alice M. Sexton, Principal Attorney Office of Legal Services 2800 Berlin Turnpike Newington, CT 06131-7546 Tel. (860) 594-3045

Office of State Ethics 20 Trinity Street, Suite 205 Hartford, CT 06106 Tel. (860) 566-4472

Facs. (860) 566-3806

Web: <u>www.ethics.state.ct.us</u>

Enforcement

The Department expects that all employees will comply with all laws and policies regarding ethical conduct. Violations of the law may subject an employee to sanctions from agencies or authorities outside the DOT. Whether or not another agency or authority imposes such sanctions, the Department retains the independent right to review and respond to any ethics violation or alleged ethics violation by its employees. Violations of this policy or ethics statutes, as construed by the DOT, may result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal from State service.

Prohibited Activities

1. Gifts: DOT employees (and in some cases their family members) are prohibited by the Code of Ethics and this Policy from accepting a gift from anyone who is: (1) doing business with, or seeking to do business with, the DOT; (2) directly regulated by the DOT; (3) prequalified as a contractor pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. §4a-100 by the Commissioner of the Department of Administrative Services (DAS); or (4) known to be a registered lobbyist or a lobbyist's representative. These four categories of people/entities are referred to as "restricted donors." A list of registered lobbyists can be found on the web site of the Office of State Ethics (www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp). A list of prequalified consultants and contractors, i.e., those seeking to do business with the DOT, can be found on the DOT's Internet site under "Consultant Information" and "Doing Business with ConnDOT," respectively.

The term "gift" is defined in the Code of Ethics for Public Officials, Conn. Gen. Stat. §1-79(e), and has numerous exceptions. For example, one exception permits the acceptance of food and/or beverages valued up to \$50 per calendar year from any one donor and consumed on an occasion or occasions while the person paying or his representative is present. Therefore, such food and/or beverage is not a "gift." Another exception permits the acceptance of items having a value up to ten dollars (\$10) provided the aggregate value of all things provided by the donor to the recipient during a calendar year does not exceed fifty dollars (\$50). Therefore, such items are not a "gift." Depending on the circumstances, the "donor" may be an individual if the individual is bearing the expense, or a donor may be the individual's employer/group if the individual is passing the expense back to the employer/group he/she represents.

This policy requires DOT employees to immediately return any gift (as defined in the Code of Ethics) that any person or entity attempts to give to the employee(s). If any such gift or other item of value is received by other than personal delivery from the subject person or entity, the item shall be taken to the Office of Human Resources along with the name and address of the person or entity who gave the item. The Office of Human Resources, along with the recipient of the item of value, will arrange for the donation of the item to a local charity (e.g., Foodshare, local soup kitchens, etc.). The Office of Human Resources will then send a letter to the gift's donor advising the person of the item's donation to charity and requesting that no such gifts be given to DOT employees in the future.

2. Contracting for Goods or Services for Personal Use With Department Contractors, Consultants, or Vendors: Executive Order 7C provides that: "Appointed officials and state employees in the Executive Branch are prohibited from contracting for goods and services, for personal use, with any person doing business with or seeking business with his or her agency, unless the goods or services are readily available to the general public for the price which the official or state employee paid or would pay." Gift Exchanges Between Subordinates and Supervisors/Senior Staff: A recent change in the Code of Ethics prohibits

exchanges of gifts valued at \$100 or more between (*i.e.*, to and from) supervisors and employees under their supervision. The Citizen's Ethics Advisory Board has advised that: (1) the monetary limit imposed by this provision is a per-gift amount; (2) gifts given between supervisors and subordinates (or *vice versa*) in celebration of a "major life event," as defined in the Code of Ethics, need not comply with the \$100 limit; and (3) the limitations imposed by this provision apply to a direct supervisor and subordinate *and to any individual up or down the chain of command*. The Citizen's Ethics Advisory Board has also advised that supervisors or subordinates may not pool their money to give a collective or group gift valued at \$100 or more, even though each of the individual contributions is less than \$100.

- 3. Acceptance of Gifts to the State: A recent change to the Code of Ethics for Public Officials modified the definition of the term "gift" to limit the application of the so-called "gift to the State" exception. In general, "gifts to the State" are goods or services given to a State agency for use on State property or to support an event and which facilitate State action or functions. Before accepting any benefit as a "gift to the State," DOT employees should contact the Ethics Compliance Officer.
- 4. **Charitable Organizations and Events:** No DOT employee shall knowingly accept any gift, discount, or other item of monetary value for the benefit of a charitable organization from any person or entity seeking official action from, doing or seeking business with, or conducting activities regulated by, the Department.
- 5. **Use of Office/Position for Financial Gain:** DOT employees shall not use their public office, position, or influence from holding their State office/position, nor any information gained in the course of their State duties, for private financial gain (or the prevention of financial loss) for themselves, any family member, any member of their household, nor any "business with which they are associated." In general, a business with which one is associated includes any entity of which a DOT employee or his/her immediate family member is a director, owner, limited or general partner, beneficiary of a trust, holder of 5 percent or more stock, or an officer (president, treasurer, or executive or senior vice president).

DOT employees shall not use or distribute State information (except as permitted by the Freedom of Information Act), nor use State time, personnel, equipment, or materials, for other than State business purposes.

6. **Other Employment:** DOT employees shall not engage in, nor accept, other employment that will either impair their independence of judgment with regard to their State duties or require or induce them to disclose confidential information gained through their State duties.

Any DOT employee who engages in or accepts other employment (including as an independent contractor), or has direct ownership in an outside business or sole proprietorship, shall complete an Employment/Outside Business Disclosure Form (see attached) and submit it to the Department's Human Resources Administrator. Disclosure of other employment to the DOT Human Resources Administrator shall *not* constitute approval of the other employment for purposes of the Code of Ethics for Public Officials.

Inquiries concerning the propriety of a DOT employee's other employment shall be directed to the Office of State Ethics to assure compliance with the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. Employees anticipating accepting other employment as described above should give ample time (at least one month) to the Office of State Ethics to respond to such outside employment inquiries.

- No employee of the DOT shall allow any private obligation of employment or enterprise to take precedence over his/her responsibility to the Department.
- 7. Outside Business Interests: Any DOT employee who holds, directly or indirectly, a financial interest in any business, firm, or enterprise shall complete an Employment/Outside Business Disclosure Form (see attached) and submit it to the Department's Human Resources Administrator. An indirect financial interest includes situations where a DOT employee's spouse has a financial interest in a business, firm, or enterprise. A financial interest means that the employee or his spouse is an owner, member, partner, or shareholder in a non-publicly traded entity. Disclosure of such outside business interests to the DOT Human Resources Administrator shall not constitute approval of the outside business interest under this Policy or the Code of Ethics for Public Officials. DOT employees shall not have a financial interest in any business, firm, or enterprise which will either impair their independence of judgment with regard to their State duties or require or induce them to disclose confidential information gained through their State duties. Inquiries concerning the propriety of a DOT employee's outside business interests shall be directed to the Office of State Ethics to assure compliance with the Code of Ethics for Public Officials.
- 8. **Contracts With the State**: DOT employees, their immediate family members, and/or a business with which a DOT employee is associated, may not enter into a contract with the State, other than pursuant to a court appointment, valued at \$100 or more unless the contract has been awarded through an open and public process.
- Sanctioning Another Person's Ethics Violation: No DOT official or employee shall counsel, authorize, or otherwise sanction action that violates any provision of the Code of Ethics.
- 10. Certain Persons Have an Obligation to Report Ethics Violations: If the DOT Commissioner, Deputy Commissioner, or "person in charge of State agency procurement" and contracting has reasonable cause to believe that a person has violated the Code of Ethics or any law or regulation concerning ethics in State contracting, he/she must report such belief to the Office of State Ethics. All DOT employees are encouraged to disclose waste, fraud, abuse, and corruption about which they become aware to the appropriate authority (see also Policy Statement EX.O.-23 dated March 31, 2004), including, but not limited to, their immediate supervisor or a superior of their immediate supervisor, the DOT Office of Management Services, the Ethics Compliance Officer, the Auditors of Public Accounts, the Office of the Attorney General, or the Office of the Chief State's Attorney.
- 11. Post-State Employment Restrictions: In addition to the above-stated policies of the Department, DOT employees are advised that the Code of Ethics for Public Officials bars certain conduct by State employees after they leave State service. Upon leaving State service:
 - **Confidential Information**: DOT employees must never disclose or use confidential information gained in State service for the financial benefit of any person.
 - Prohibited Representation: DOT employees must never represent anyone (other than the State) concerning any "particular matter" in which they participated personally and

substantially while in State service and in which the State has a substantial interest.

DOT employees also must not, for one year after leaving State service, represent anyone other than the State for compensation before the DOT concerning a matter in which the State has a substantial interest. In this context, the term "represent" has been very broadly defined. Therefore, any former DOT employee contemplating post-State employment work that might involve interaction with any bureau of DOT (or any Board or Commission administratively under the DOT) within their first year after leaving State employment should contact the DOT Ethics Compliance Officer and/or the Office of State Ethics.

- Employment With State Vendors: DOT employees who participated substantially in, or supervised, the negotiation or award of a State contract valued at \$50,000 or more must not accept employment with a party to the contract (other than the State) for a period of one year after resigning from State service, if the resignation occurs within one year after the contract was signed.
- 12. Ethical Considerations Concerning Bidding and State Contracts: DOT employees also should be aware of various provisions of Part IV of the Code of Ethics that affect any person or firm who: (1) is, or is seeking to be, prequalified by DAS under Conn. Gen. Stat. §4a-100; (2) is a party to a large State construction or procurement contract, or seeking to enter into such a contract, with a State agency; or (3) is a party to a consultant services contract, or seeking to enter into such a contract, with a State agency. These persons or firms shall not:
 - With the intent to obtain a competitive advantage over other bidders, solicit any information from an employee or official that the contractor knows is not and will not be available to other bidders for a large State construction or procurement contract that the contractor is seeking;
 - Intentionally, willfully, or with reckless disregard for the truth, charge a State agency for
 work not performed or goods not provided, including submitting meritless change orders in
 bad faith with the sole intention of increasing the contract price, as well as falsifying
 invoices or bills or charging unreasonable and unsubstantiated rates for services or goods
 to a State agency; and
 - Intentionally or willfully violate or attempt to circumvent State competitive bidding and ethics laws.

Firms or persons that violate the above provisions may be deemed a nonresponsible bidder by the DOT.

In addition, no person with whom a State agency has contracted to provide consulting services to plan specifications for any contract, and no business with which such person is associated, may serve as a consultant to any person seeking to obtain such contract, serve as a contractor for such contract, or serve as a subcontractor or consultant to the person awarded such contract.

DOT employees who believe that a contractor or consultant may be in violation of any

of these provisions should bring it to the attention of their manager.

Training for DOT Employees

A copy of this policy will be posted throughout the Department, and provided to each employee either in hard copy or by e-mail. As set forth above, State law requires that certain employees involved in contractor/consultant/vendor selection, evaluation, or supervision must undergo annual ethics training coordinated or provided by the Ethics Compliance Officer. If you believe your duties meet these criteria, you should notify your Bureau Chief to facilitate compilation of a training schedule. In addition, the DOT Ethics Compliance Officer can arrange for periodic ethics training provided by the Office of State Ethics. Finally, the Department will make available, on its web site or otherwise, a copy of this policy to all vendors, contractors, and other business entities doing business with the Department.

Important Ethics Reference Materials

It is strongly recommended that every DOT employee read and review the following:

- Code of Ethics for Public Officials, Chapter 10, Part 1, Conn. General Statutes Sections 1-79 through 1-89a found at: www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp
- Ethics Regulations Sections 1-81-14 through 1-81-38, found at: www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp
- The Office of State Ethics web site includes summaries and the full text of formal ethics advisory opinions interpreting the Code of Ethics, as well as summaries of previous enforcement actions: www.ct.gov/ethics/site/default.asp. DOT employees are strongly encouraged to contact the Department's Ethics Compliance Officer or her designee, or the Office of State Ethics with any questions or concerns they may have.

(This Policy Statement supersedes Policy Statement No. F&A-10 dated January 6, 2006)

March 3, 2009

CONNECTICUT REQUIRED CONTRACT/AGREEMENT PROVISIONS SPECIFIC EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY RESPONSIBILITIES

1. General:

- a. Equal employment opportunity requirements not to discriminate and to take affirmative action to assure equal employment opportunity as required by Executive Order 11246, Executive Order 11375 are set forth in Required Contract Provisions (Form PR-1273 or 1316, as appropriate) and these Special Provisions which are imposed pursuant to Section 140 of Title 23 U.S.C., as established by Section 22 of the Federal- Aid Highway Act of 1968. The requirements set forth in these Special Provisions shall constitute the specific affirmative action requirements for project activities under this contract and supplement the equal employment opportunity requirements set forth in the Required Contract Provisions.
- b. "Company" refers to any entity doing business with the Connecticut Department of Transportation and includes but is not limited to the following:

Contractors and Subcontractors Consultants and Subconsultants Suppliers of Materials and Vendors (where applicable) Municipalities (where applicable) Utilities (where applicable)

- c. The Company will work with the Connecticut Department of Transportation (ConnDOT) and the Federal Government in carrying out equal employment opportunity obligations and in their review of his/her activities under the contract.
- d. The Company and all his/her subcontractors or subconsultants holding subcontracts not including material suppliers, of \$10,000 or more, will comply with the following minimum specific requirement activities of equal employment opportunity: (The equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as set forth in volume 6, Chapter 4, Section 1, subsection 1 of the Federal-Aid Highway Program Manual, are applicable to material suppliers as well as contractors and subcontractors.) The company will include these requirements in every subcontract of \$10,000 or more with such modification of language as necessary to make them binding on the subcontractor or subconsultant.

2. Equal Employment Opportunity Policy:

The Company will develop, accept and adopt as its operating policy an Affirmative Action Plan utilizing the ConnDOT Affirmative Action Plan Guideline. This Plan shall be designed to further the provision of equal employment opportunity to all persons without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin, and to promote the full realization of equal employment opportunity through a positive continuation program.

3. Equal Employment Opportunity Officer:

The Company will designate and make known to ConnDOT contracting officers an Equal Employment Opportunity Officer (hereinafter referred to as the EEO Officer) who will have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active equal employment opportunity program and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.

4. Dissemination of Policy:

a. All members of the Company's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the Company's equal employment opportunity policy and

contractual responsibilities to provide equal employment opportunity in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:

- (1) Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees will be conducted before the start of work and then not less often than once every six months, at which time the Company's equal employment opportunity policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meeting will be conducted by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official.
- (2) All new supervisor or personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official, covering all major aspects of the Company's equal employment opportunity obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the Company.
- (3) All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer or appropriate company official in the Company's procedures for locating and hiring minority group employees.
- b. In order to make the Company's equal employment opportunity policy known to all employees, prospective employees and potential sources of employees, i.e., schools, employment agencies, labor unions (where appropriate), college placement officers, etc., the Company will place their equal employment opportunity policy in areas readily accessible to employees, applicants for employment and potential employees. The Company will bring the equal opportunity policy to the attention of employees through meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.

5. Recruitment:

- a. When advertising for employees, the Company will include in all advertisements the notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer". All such advertisements will be published in newspapers or other publications having a large circulation among minority groups in the area from which the project workforce would normally be derived. The Company shall comply with this provision and the recruitment requirements outlined in their ConnDOT approved Affirmative Action Plan.
- b. The Company will, unless precluded by a valid bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct recruitment through public and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minority group applicants, including, but not limited to, State employment agencies, schools, colleges and minority group organizations. To meet this requirement, the Company will, through his/her EEO Officer, identify sources of potential minority group employees, and establish with such identified sources, procedures whereby minority group employees, and applicants may be referred to the Company for employment consideration.

In the event that the Company has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, he/she is expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system permits the Company's compliance with equal employment opportunity contract provisions. (The U.S. Department of Labor has held that where implementation of such agreements have the effect of discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the Company to do the same, such implementation violates Executive Order 11246, as amended.)

c. The Company will encourage his/her present employees to refer minority group applicants for employment by posting appropriate notices or bulletins in areas accessible to all such employees. In addition, information and procedures with regard to referring minority group applicants will be discussed with employees.

6. Personnel Actions:

Wages, working conditions, and employee benefits shall be established and administered, and personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, promotion, transfer, demotion, layoffs, and termination, shall be taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin, etc. The company's personnel actions shall comply with this provision and the requirements outlined in their ConnDOT approved Affirmative Action Plan.

- a. The Company will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
- b. The Company will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid within each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- c. The Company will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the Company will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.
- d. The general contract provision entitled A(76) Affirmative Action Requirements is made part of this document by reference.

7. Training and Promotion:

- a. The Company will assist in locating, qualifying, and increasing the skills of minority group and women employees, and applicants for employment.
- b. Consistent with the Company's work force requirements and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the Company shall make full use of training programs, i.e., apprenticeship, and on-the-job training programs for the geographical area of contract performance. Where feasible, 25 percent of apprentices or trainees in each occupation shall be in their first year of apprenticeship or training. In the event the Training Special Provision is provided under this contract, this subparagraph will be superseded.
- c. The Company will advise employees and applicants for employment of available training programs and the entrance requirements for each.
- d. The Company will periodically review the training and promotion potential of minority group and women employees and will encourage eligible employees to apply for such training and promotion.

8. Unions:

If the Company relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, the Company will use his/her best efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minority groups and women within the unions, and to effect referrals by such unions of minority and female employees. Actions by the Company either directly or through a contractor's association acting as agent will include the procedures set forth below:

- a. The Company will use best efforts to develop, in cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed toward qualifying more minority group members and women for membership in the unions and increasing the skills of minority group employees and women so that they may qualify for higher paying employment.
- b. The Company will use best efforts to incorporate an Equal Opportunity clause into each union agreement to the extent that such union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national origin.

- c. The Company is to obtain information as to the referral practices and policies of the labor union except to the extent that such information is within the exclusive possession of the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such information to the Company, the Company shall so certify to the Connecticut Department of Transportation (ConnDOT) and shall set forth what efforts have been made to obtain such information.
- d. In the event the union is unable to provide the Company with a reasonable flow of minority and women referrals within the time limit set forth in the collective bargaining agreement, the Company will, through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin; making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable minority group persons and women. (The United States Department of Labor has held that it shall be no excuse that the union with which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement providing for exclusive referral failed to refer minority employees.) In the event the union referral practice prevents the Company from meeting the obligations under Executive Order 11246 as amended, and these special provisions, such Company shall immediately notify ConnDOT.

9. Subcontracting:

- a. The Company will use his/her best efforts to solicit bids from and to utilize minority group subcontractors, or subcontractors with meaningful minority group and female representation among their employees. Companies shall obtain lists of minority-owned construction firms from the Division of Contract compliance.
- b. The Company will use its best efforts to ensure subcontractor compliance with their equal employment opportunity obligations.

10. Records and Reports:

- a. The Company will keep such records as are necessary to determine compliance with equal employment opportunity obligations. The records kept by the Company will be designed to indicate:
- (1) The number of minority and non-minority group members and women employed in each classification on the project;
- (2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation with unions to increase employment opportunities for minorities and women; (applicable only to contractors who rely in whole or in part on unions as a source of their work force),
- (3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, training, qualifying, and upgrading minority and female employees; and
- (4) The progress and efforts being made in securing the services of minority group subcontractors, or subcontractors with meaningful minority and female representation among their employees.
- b. All such records must be retained for a period of three years following completion of the contract work and shall be available at reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized representatives of ConnDOT and the Federal Highway Administration.
- c. The Company will submit an annual report to ConnDOT each July for the duration of the project, indicating the number of minority, women, and non-minority group employees currently engaged in each work classification required by the contract work. This information is to be reported on Form PR 1391. If on-the-job training is being required by "Training Special Provision", the Company will be required to furnish Form FHWA 1409.

11. Affirmative Action Plan

Companies with contracts, agreements or purchase orders valued at \$10,000 or more will submit a ConnDOT Affirmative Action Plan.

GUIDELINES AND RULES OF STATE LABOR COMMISSIONERS IMPLEMENTING GOVERNOR'S EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. THREE

SEC. 1. PERSONS & FIRMS SUBJECT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. THREE AND GUIDELINES & RULES.

- a. Every contractor, or subcontractor as defined in Sec. 2 hereof, supplier of goods or services, vendor, bidder and prospective contractor or subcontractor, having ten or more employees as defined in Sec. 3 of these Guidelines, having or entering into or bidding to enter into any type of contractual relationship with the State of Connecticut or any of its agencies, boards, commissions, departments or officers, and if the consideration, cost, subject matter or value of the goods or services exceeds \$5,000.00, shall be subject to the Governor's Executive Order No. Three and these Guidelines and Rules.
- b. A copy of the Governor's Executive Order No. Three and of these Guidelines and Rules shall be available to each said contractor, subcontractor, supplier, vendor, bidder and prospective contractor and subcontractor, and the said Executive Order No. Three and these Guidelines and Rules shall be incorporated by reference and made a part of the contract, purchase order, agreement or document concerned. A copy of the Executive Order and of these Guidelines and Rules shall be furnished to a contracting party or bidder on request.
- c. All persons, partnerships, associations, firms, corporations and other entities having less than ten employees as defined in Sec. 3 at the time of the bid and execution of the contract and continuing through the performance of the contract are exempt from the provisions of the said Executive Order and these Guidelines and Rules. All contracts, subcontracts, purchase orders and agreements wherein the consideration is \$5,000.00 or less shall be exempt from Executive Order No. Three and from these Guidelines and Rules.

SEC. 2. SUBCONTRACTORS.

As used herein, subcontractors are persons, partnerships, associations, firms or corporations or other entities having contractual relationship with a contractor who in turn has a contract with the State of Connecticut or any of its agencies, boards, commissions or departments. Subcontractors below this tier are exempt from the Executive Order and from these Guidelines and Rules.

SEC. 3 EMPLOYEES.

As used herein, employees are persons working full or part-time irrespective of personnel classification whose wages, salaries, or earnings are subject to the Federal Insurance Contribution Act and/or to Federal Withholding Tax as a matter of law (Whether in fact or not any actual withholding occurs in a given case), in an employee-employer relationship at the time of bid, contract execution, or offer or acceptance, and/or during any time thereafter during the existence of the performance period of the contract to the conclusion thereof.

SEC. 4. REPORTS.

- a. Prior to the execution of the contract or prior to acceptance of a bid, as the case may be, the contractor, subcontractor, bidder or vendor shall file a report with the State Labor Commissioner, which report shall be complete and contain all of the information therein prescribed. The report shall be on Form E.C. 3-1, a facsimile of which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, or in lieu thereof the contractor, subcontractor, bidder or vendor shall submit a detailed report containing all of the information required in Form E.C. 3-1.
- b. The Labor Commissioner may require the filing of additional reports prior to final payment or prior to any renewal or extension of the contract and during the duration of the contract at such times as the Commissioner may, in his discretion, from time to time deem necessary. The Labor

Commissioner may require the filing of additional information or reports, and the contractor, subcontractor, bidder or vendor shall furnish said information or reports within the times prescribed by the Labor Commissioner.

- c. The Labor Commissioner may, at his discretion, also require timely statistical reports on the number of minority employees employed or to be employed in the performance of the contract, and the labor Commissioner may define such minority groups or persons.
- d. Reports filed pursuant to these Guidelines and Rules in implementation of Executive Order No. Three are not public records subject to public inspection, but may be inspected only by federal and state officials having jurisdiction and authority to investigate matters of this type. All federal and state agencies empowered by law to investigate matters relating to Executive Order No. three shall have access to these reports for inspection or copying during regular business hours.
- e. Any person who willfully, wantonly or through negligence destroys or permits to be destroyed, alters or allows to be altered after filing, any reports submitted in compliance herewith shall be subject to penalties as prescribed by law.

SEC. 5. MANDATORY CLAUSES IN DOCUMENTS.

All contracts shall contain the following provisions verbatim:

This contract is subject to the provisions of Executive Order No. Three of Governor Thomas J. Meskill promulgated June 16, 1971 and, as such, this contract may be cancelled, terminated or surrendered by the state labor commissioner for violation of or noncompliance with said Executive Order No. Three, or any state or federal law concerning nondiscrimination, notwithstanding that the labor commissioner is not a party to this contract. The parties to this contract, as part of the consideration hereof, agree that said Executive Order No. Three is incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof. The parties agree to abide by said Executive Order and agree that the state labor commissioner shall have continuing jurisdiction in respect to contract performance in regard to nondiscrimination, until the contract is completed or terminated prior to completion.

The (contractor), (subcontractor), (bidder), (vendor) agrees, as part consideration hereof, that this (order) (contract) is subject to the Guidelines and Rules issued by the state labor commissioner to implement Executive Order No. Three, and that he will not discriminate in his employment practices or policies, will file all reports as required, and will fully cooperate with the State of Connecticut and the state labor commissioner.

These provisions are in addition to and not in lieu of other clauses required by law. *

- * N. B. the above paragraphs contain requirements additional to those set forth in July 14, 1971 directive to state agencies.
- a. Every purchase order or like form submitted by a vendor or bidder, as applicable, shall contain the following clause verbatim:
 - Vendor agrees, as part of the consideration hereof, that this order is subject to the provisions of Executive Order No. Three and the Guidelines and Rules issued by the Labor Commissioner implementing said Order as to nondiscrimination, and vendor agrees to comply therewith.
- b. Where preprinted contract forms have been prescribed by federal authority and the rules of the federal agency prohibit the alteration thereof, the compliance officer of the State agency concerned shall submit to the Labor Commissioner a suggested short form or addendum acceptable to the

federal agency, and in such cases, after approval by the Labor Commissioner, said clause may be submitted.

SEC. 6. COOPERATION OF STATE AGENCIES, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS.

Every agency, board, commission and department of the State of Connecticut shall cooperate with the Labor Commissioner in the implementation of Executive Order No. Three and shall furnish such information and assistance the Labor Commissioner may request.

SEC. 7 INVESTIGATIONS, COMPLAINTS.

The Labor Commissioner may initiate an investigation upon receipt of a complaint alleging discrimination. The Labor Commissioner may request that an investigation be conducted by the State agency which is the party to the contract in question. Investigations shall be conducted in accordance with acceptable legal standard, safeguarding the rights of all parties involved, and obtaining all of the relevant facts necessary for a complete determination of the issues. If the Labor Commissioner is not satisfied with the investigation or any part thereof he may order it to continue or to proceed further.

SEC. 8. Hearings.

The Labor Commissioners or officers designated by the heads of the State agencies, boards and commissions may conduct hearings on complaints filed. Hearings shall be held only after a report of the complaint has been filed with the Labor Commissioners and after a hearing on the complaint has been authorized or directed by the Labor Commissioner. Hearings shall be conducted in accordance with the accepted principles of administrative law. All parties shall be afforded the opportunity to a full, fair, impartial and complete hearing, the opportunity to examine and cross examine witnesses and to be present at all sessions of the hearing. If any party is vulnerable to a charge of a violation of the law, he shall be afforded the opportunity to procure counsel who may be present at the hearing.

SEC. 9. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITITES.

All state contracting agencies, employers, and labor unions shall use their best efforts to provide equal employment opportunities to all apprentices and to provide training, employment and upgrading opportunities for disadvantaged workers in accordance with section 31-51(d) of the General Statutes.

SEC. 10. DUTIES OF CONTRACTING AGENCIES.

All State contracting agencies shall be responsible for compliance with said Executive Order and with all state and federal laws relating to equal employment opportunities. All contracting agencies conducting investigations for the Labor Commissioner pursuant to Executive Order No. Three and these Guidelines and Rules shall report to the Labor Commissioner the action taken or recommended with regard to each complaint filed. Each officer of the executive department, every commissioner, and each executive head of each State agency, board and commission in the executive branch of the State government is expected to assume the responsibility of seeing to complete compliance with the Governor's Executive Order No. Three and shall forthwith take steps to assure and guarantee that there shall be no discrimination within their departments, agencies, boards or commissions in the performance of any state contract or subcontract on the basis of race, creed, color, sex, age, national origin or national ancestry, or in any way in violation of any state or federal law relating thereto.

BY VIRTUE OF THE AUTHORITY VESTED IN ME PURSUANT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. THREE EFFECTIVE JULY 14, 1971, AND THE GENERAL STATUES OF ONNECTICUT.

Dated at Wethersfield, Connecticut this 19th day of November, 1971.

Signed by: Jack A. Fusari , Labor Commissioner

State of Connecticut by His Excellency John G. Rowland Executive Order No. 16

WHEREAS, the State of Connecticut recognizes that workplace violence is a growing problem that must be addressed; and

WHEREAS, the State is committed to providing its employees a reasonably safe and healthy working environment, free form intimidation, harassment, threats, and/or violent acts, and

WHEREAS, violence or the threat of violence by or against any employee of the State of Connecticut or member of the public in the workplace is unacceptable and will subject the perpetrator to serious disciplinary action up to and including discharge and criminal penalties.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, John G. Rowland, Governor of the State of Connecticut, acting by virtue of the authority vested in me by the Constitution and by the statutes of this state, do hereby ORDER and DIRECT:

1. That all state agency personnel, contactors, subcontractors, and vendors comply with the following **Violence in the Workplace Prevention Policy:**

The State of Connecticut adopts a statewide zero tolerance policy for workplace violence.

Therefore, except as may be required as a condition of employment –

- No employee shall bring into any state worksite any weapon or dangerous instrument as defined herein.
- No employee shall use, attempt to use, or threaten to use any such weapon or dangerous instrument in a state worksite.
- No employee shall cause or threaten to cause death or physical injury to any individual in a state worksite.

Weapon means any firearm, including a BB gun, whether loaded or unloaded, any knife (excluding a small pen or pocket knife), including a switchblade or other knife having an automatic spring release device, a stiletto, any police baton or nightstick or any martial arts weapon or electronic defense weapon.

Dangerous instrument means any instrument, article, or substance that, under the circumstances, is capable of causing death or serious physical injury.

Violation of the above reasonable work rules shall subject the employee to disciplinary action up to and including discharge.

- 2. That each agency must prominently post this policy and that all managers and supervisors must clearly communicate this policy to all state employees.
- 3. That all managers and supervisors are expected to enforce this policy fairly and uniformly.

- 4. That any employee who feels subjected to or witnesses violent, threatening, harassing, or intimidating behavior in the workplace immediately report the incident or statement to their supervisor, manager, or human resources office.
- 5. That any employee who believes that there is a serious threat to their safety or the safety of others that requires immediate attention notify proper law enforcement authorities and his or her manager or supervisor.
- 6. That any manager or supervisor receiving such a report shall immediately contact their human resources office to evaluate, investigate and take appropriate action.
- 7. That all parties must cooperate fully when questioned regarding violations of this policy.
- 8. That all parties be advised that any weapon or dangerous instrument at the worksite will be confiscated and that there is no reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to such items in the workplace.
- 9. That this order applies to all state employees in the executive branch.
- 10. That each agency will monitor the effective implementation of this policy.
- 11. That this order shall take effect immediately.

Dated in Hartford, Connecticut this 4th day of August 1999.

Signed by: John G. Rowland, Governor

Files this 4th day of August 1999 Susan Bysiewicz, Secretary of the State

THOMAS J. MESKILL, GOVERNOR EXECUTIVE ORDER NO. SEVENTEEN

WHEREAS, Section 31-237 of the General Statutes of Connecticut as amended requires the maintaining of the established free services of the Connecticut State Employment Service to both employers and prospective employees and

WHEREAS, Section 31-5 of the General Statutes of Connecticut requires that no compensation or fee shall be charged or received directly or indirectly for the services of the Connecticut State Employment Service and

WHEREAS, large numbers of our citizens who have served in the Armed Forces of our nation are returning to civilian life in our state and seeking employment in civilian occupations and

WHEREAS, we owe a duty as well as gratitude to these returning veterans including the duty to find suitable employment for them and

WHEREAS, many of our handicapped citizens are fully capable of employment and are entitled to be placed in suitable employment and

WHEREAS, many of the citizens of our state who are unemployed are unaware of the job openings and employment opportunities which do in fact exist in our state and

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the free services of the Connecticut State Employment Service, many of our Connecticut employers do not use its free services or do not avail themselves fully of all of the services offered.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, THOMAS J. MESKILL, governor of the State of Connecticut, acting by virtue of the authority vested in me under the fourth article of the Constitution of the State and in accordance with Section 3-1 of the General Statutes, do hereby ORDER and DIRECT, as follows, by this Executive Order:

ı

The Labor Commissioner shall be responsible for the administration of this Order and shall do all acts necessary and appropriate to achieve its purpose. Upon Promulgation of this Order, the Commissioner of Finance and Control shall issue a directive forthwith to all state agencies that henceforth all state contracts and subcontracts for construction on public buildings, other public works and goods and services shall contain a provision rending such contract or subcontract subject to this Order, and that such contract or subcontract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended by the Labor Commissioner for violation off or noncompliance with this Order, notwithstanding that the Labor Commissioner is not a party to such contract or subcontract.

II

Every contractor and subcontractor having a contract with the state or any of its agencies, boards, commissions, or departments, every individual partnership, corporation, or business entity having business with the state or who or which seeks to do business with the state, and every bidder or prospective bidder who submits a bid or replies to an invitation to bid on any state contract shall list all employment openings with the office of the Connecticut State Employment Service in the area where the work is to be performed or where the services are to be rendered.

Ш

All state contracts shall contain a clause which shall be a condition of the contract that the contractor and any subcontractor holding a contact directly under the contractor shall list all employment openings with the Connecticut State Employment Service. The Labor Commissioner may allow exceptions to listings of employment openings which the contractor proposes to fill from within its organization from employees on the rolls of the contractor on the date of publication of the invitation to bid or the date on which the public announcement was published or promulgated advising of the program concerned.

Each contracting agency of the state shall be primarily responsible for obtaining compliance with this Executive Order. Each contracting agency shall appoint or designate from among its personnel one or more persons who shall be responsible for compliance with the objectives of this Order.

٧

The Labor Commissioner shall be and is herby empowered to inspect the books, records, payroll and personnel data of each individual or business entity subject to this Executive Order an may hold hearings or conferences, formal or informal, in pursuance of the duties and responsibilities hereunto delegated to the Labor Commissioner.

VΙ

The Labor Commissioner or any agency officer or employee in the executive branch designated by regulation of the Labor Commissioner may hold such hearings, public or private, as the Labor Commissioner may deem advisable for compliance, enforcement or educational purposes under this Order.

VII

- (a) The Labor Commissioner may hold or cause to be held hearings, prior to imposing, ordering, or recommending the imposition of penalties and sanctions under this Order. In accordance herewith, the Commissioner or the appropriate contracting agency may suspend, cancel, terminate, or cause to be suspended, cancelled, or terminated in accordance with law, any contract or any portion or portions thereof for failure of the contractor or subcontractor to comply with the listing provisions of the contract. Contracts may be cancelled, terminated, suspended absolutely or their continuance conditioned upon a program for future compliance approved by the contracting agency.
- (b) Any contracting agency taking any action authorized by this Order, whether on its own motion or as directed by the labor Commissioner, shall promptly notify him of such action. Whenever the Labor Commissioner makes a determination under this Order, he shall promptly notify the appropriate contracting agency of the action recommended. The agency shall report the results to the Labor Commissioner promptly.

VIII

If the Labor Commissioner shall so direct, contracting agencies shall not enter into contracts with any bidder or prospective contractor unless he has satisfactorily complied with the provisions of this Order.

This Order shall become effective sixty days after the date of this Order.

Dated at Hartford, Connecticut, this 15th day of February, 1973.

Signed by: Thomas J. Meskill

Governor

Jurisdiction and Forum Language: The parties deem the Agreement to have been made in the City of Norwalk, State of Connecticut. Accordingly the Parties agree this Agreement is governed by the laws and court decisions of the State of Connecticut without giving effect to its conflict of law provisions. .The Second Party irrevocably consents with respect to any claims or remedies at law or inequity, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement to the jurisdiction of the Connecticut Superior Court (except as otherwise required by law or Agreement).

Audit and Inspection of Plants, Places of Business, and Records: The District and the State and its agents, including, but not limited to, The Connecticut Auditors of Public Accounts, Attorney General and State's Attorney and their respective agents, may, at reasonable hours, inspect and examine all of the parts of the plants and places of business which, in any way, are related to, or involved in, the performance of this Agreement.

The Contractor shall maintain accurate and complete records and shall make all of its records available at all reasonable hours for audit and inspection by the District and the State of its agents.

All requests for any audit or inspection will be made in writing and shall provide the Contractor with at least twenty-four (24) hours' notice prior to the requested audit and inspection date. If the STATE suspects fraud or other abuse, or in the event of an emergency, no obligation to provide any prior notice is required.

The Contractor shall keep and preserve or cause to be kept and preserved all of its records until three (3) years after the later of (i) final payment under this Agreement, or (ii) the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, as the same may be modified for any reason. The State or the District may request an audit or inspection at any time during this period. If any claim or audit is started before the expiration of this period, the Contractor shall retain or cause to be retained all records until all claims or audit findings have been resolved.

The Contractor shall cooperate fully with an audit or inspection. Following any audit or inspection, an exit conference may be conducted in which the Contractor shall cooperate and participate.

Environmental Law and Compliance: - The Second party shall be responsible to comply with all federal and state environmental laws and regulations including but not limited to, pollutants emissions control, storage and/or disposal of waste, fluids, fuels, oil, and chemicals in general. The Second Party shall be responsible to comply with OSHA regulations. The Second Party will hold the State and the District harmless of any lawsuits and/or fines with respect to any environmental and/or OSHA regulations violations.

INSURANCE TYPES AND THRESHOLDS

INSURANCE CERTIFICATES REQUIRED: Before any contract is executed, the successful contractor(s) will be required to file with the Norwalk Transit District, prior to the commencement of work under this contract or within twenty (20) days from the date of notification (whichever occurs first) a Certificate of Insurance. The certificate must be executed by a company authorized to write such business in the State of Connecticut, and the company must be authorized to underwrite the specific line coverage as designated below. The insurance certificate and coverage requested must be updated and kept current throughout the life of the contract, including any extensions. Failure to submit proof of insurance coverage within the specified time frame will allow the District to re-award the contract or re-bid the project, as it deems necessary. Insurance certificates must document that the Vendor commercial general liability, automotive liability, workers compensation insurance, and any other insurance requirements in the amounts cited in the bid document to protect the District in the event of a claim, and/or in accordance with any statutory requirements.

With respect to the operations performed by the contractor under the terms of this Contract and also those performed for the contractor by its subcontractors, the contractor will be required to obtain at its own cost and for the duration of this Contract, and any supplements thereto with the District and the State being named as an additional insured with the following minimum liability insurance coverage at no direct cost to the District or the State.

Contractor shall assume any and all deductibles in the described insurance policies. The contractor's insurers shall have no right of recovery or subrogation against the District or the State and the described insurance shall be primary coverage. Any failure to comply with the claim reporting provisions of the policy shall not affect coverage provided to the District or the State. Each required insurance policy shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced except after 60 days prior written notice by certified mail has been given to the District and the State. "Claims Made" coverage is unacceptable.

A. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (as applicable)

Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability Insurance, providing a Combined Single Limit of ONE MILLION DOLLARS (\$1,000,000.00) for all damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of all persons in any one accident or occurrence, and for all damages arising out of injury to or destruction of property in any one accident or occurrence, and, subject to that limit per occurrence, a total (or aggregate) limit of TWO MILLION DOLLARS (\$2,000,000.00) for all damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of all persons and out of injury to or destruction of property during the policy period. Total/aggregate coverage shall be per project, purchase order or contract aggregate. Coverage shall include Premises and Operations, Independent Contractors, Products and Completed Operations, Contractual Liability and Broad Form Property Damage.

B. AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

The operation of all motor vehicles, including those hired, leased or borrowed, used in connection with the Contract shall be covered by Automobile Liability Insurance providing for a total of (a) ONE MILLION DOLLARS (\$1,000,000.00) for vehicles with a seating capacity of ten(10) or less passengers, (b) One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$1,500,000) for vehicles with a seating capacity of fourteen (14) or less passengers, and (c) Five Million Dollars (\$5,000,000) for vehicles with a with a seating capacity of fifteen (15) or more passengers, for all damages arising out of bodily injury to or death of all persons in any one accident or occurrence, and for all damages arising out of injury to or destruction of property in any one accident or occurrence.

C. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

With respect to all operations the contractor performs and all those performed for the contractor by subcontractor(s), the contractor, and subcontractor(s) if used, shall carry Workers Compensation Insurance at statutory coverage limits and/or, as applicable, insurance required in accordance with the U. S. Longshoremens and Harbor Workers Compensation Act, the Federal Employers Liability Act, all in accordance with the requirements of the laws of the State of Connecticut, and the laws of the United States respectively.

D. UMBRELLA LIABILITY

In the event the contractor secures excess/umbrella liability insurance to meet the minimum requirements

specified and (if required) the Norwalk Transit District and the State of Connecticut must be named as Additional Insured.

E. ERRORS AND OMISSIONS INSURANCE:

The CONSULTANT shall provide errors and omissions insurance for liability resulting from the negligent performance of professional duties or operations. Such policy shall contain limits of liability in the amount of \$1,000,000 each occurrence and \$1,000,000 in the aggregate.

The Contractor agrees to furnish to the NTD "Certificate of Insurance, in conjunction with Items A, B, C, D, and E above, fully executed by an insurance company or companies satisfactory to the District and the State, for the insurance policy or policies herein above, which policy or policies shall be in accordance with the terms of said Certificate of Insurance. For the Workers' Compensation Insurance and, if applicable, the U.S. Longshoremens and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act coverage, the policy number (s) and term of the policy (ies) shall be indicated on the certificate of insurance. Each insurance policy shall state that the insurance company agrees to investigate and defend the insured against all claims for damages, even if groundless. Contractor hereby indemnifies and shall defend and hold harmless the District and the State, its officers and its employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, damages, liabilities, monetary loss, interest, attorney's fees, costs and expenses of whatsoever kind or nature arising out of the performance of this agreement, including those arising out of injury to or death of Contractor's employees or subcontractors, whether arising before, during or after completion of the services hereunder and in any manner directly or indirectly caused, occasioned or contributed to in whole or in part, by reason of any act, omission, fault or negligence of Contractor or its employees, agents or subcontractors. Updates on the insurance coverage are the responsibility of the contractors. Insurance requirements will be strictly enforced. Contractors should hand carry or mail Insurance Certificates to the Norwalk Transit District, C/O Project Manager of NTD, Lori Hammill, 275 Wilson Avenue, Norwalk, CT 06854. Purchase orders WILL NOT be issued without receipt of properly executed insurance certificates.

THE NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT CODE OF ETHICS/CONDUCT

Statement of Policy

The Norwalk Transit District operates a public service, using public funds and facilities. As such, all officers, employees, board members or agents engaged in the award of administration of third party contracts or sub agreements financed with Federal or State assistance have a responsibility to safeguard public assets and maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct in their performance of public business. The Company's adopted Code of Ethics is consistent with the policies established by the Connecticut Department of Transportation for its employees.

Acceptance of Gifts or Gratuities

Norwalk Transit District's officers, employees, board members, or agents may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from any present or potential third party contractor at any tier or subrecipient at any tier or agent thereof. Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, board member, or agent, including any member of his or her immediate family, partner, or organization that employs, or intends to employ, any of the parties listed herein has a financial interest in the firm selected for award. The Norwalk Transit District has set *de minimis* rules where the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value. If an employee has any question regarding the definition of de minimis or nominal intrinsic value they should direct in writing and confer immediately with the CEO. It further agrees that its code or standards shall also prohibit the its officers, employees, board members, or agents from using their respective positions in a manner that presents a real or apparent personal or organizational conflict of interest or personal gain. As permitted by State or local law or regulations, the Norwalk Transit District agrees that its code or standards of conduct shall include penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary actions for violations by its officers, employees, board members, or their agents, or its third party contractors or subrecipients or their agents.

No officers, employees, board members or agent including shall, either individually or as a member of a group, directly or indirectly, solicit or accept any gift or gratuity from any person or organization with whom he/she has, has had, or may expect to have, a business relationship which would cause, or create the appearance of, a conflict with or influence the performance of the employee's duties.

It is especially important that employees who are in any way involved in making or recommending procurement decisions, in writing specifications for Company purchases, or in reviewing the performance of Company suppliers or contractors, exercise special care to avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest. This policy extends to the solicitation or acceptance of special treatment or personal discounts from an outside vendor, as well as specific items of monetary value.

Any offers of gifts, gratuities, personal discounts, or other special favors to Company employees must be courteously, but firmly, refused or returned. When it is necessary to do so, employees should, for their own protection, document their actions, citing this policy.

Personal Conflict of Interest

The Norwalk Transit District's code of conduct prohibits its' employees, officers, board members, or agents from participating in the selection, award, or administration of any third party contract or subagreement supported by State and Federal assistance if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, board member, or agent, including any member of his or her immediate family, partner, or organization that employs, or intends to employ, any of the parties listed herein has a financial interest in the firm selected for award.

Organizational Conflicts of Interest.

The Norwalk Transit District's code of conduct includes procedures for identifying and preventing real and apparent organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists when the nature of the work to be performed under a proposed third party contract or subagreement may, without some restrictions on future activities, result in an unfair competitive advantage to the third party contractor or subrecipient or impair its objectivity in performing the contract work. Engaging in practices that result in organizational conflicts of interest:

Occurrence. An organizational conflict of interest occurs when any of the following circumstances arise:

- a Lack of Impartiality or Impaired Objectivity. When the contractor is unable, or potentially unable, to provide impartial and objective assistance or advice to NTD due to other activities, relationships, contracts, or circumstances.
- b Unequal Access to Information. The contractor has an unfair competitive advantage through obtaining access to nonpublic information during the performance of an earlier contract.
- c Biased Ground Rules. During the conduct of an earlier procurement, the contractor has established the ground rules for a future procurement by developing specifications, evaluation factors, or similar documents.

Use of Public Facilities

Personal use of Company facilities, vehicles, equipment, supplies, and services is strictly prohibited. Company facilities, equipment, supplies, and services shall be used only for proper business purposes. This policy applies to the use of Company employees to perform personal favors or tasks, even if reimbursement is made. Likewise, use of Company facilities and/or equipment (included are tools, pits, lifts, electrical power, etc.) for servicing employee's personal vehicle or any personal property, taking office supplies for personal use, personal use of office copying equipment and telephones, and misuse of petty cash accounts, can be serious violations of this policy.

An exception is made for personal copying of an incidental nature where it is impractical to make personal copies outside the office. In such instances, you must reimburse the Company the established rate for each copy. Payment should be made to the Director of Finance. Employees are expected to perform personal copying on their own time. Employees who abuse this privilege by making an excessive number of personal copies, failing to reimburse the Company as required, and/or leaving copier equipment in unserviceable condition will be subject to disciplinary action.

As a general policy, employees should not place or receive personal telephone calls during working hours. Employees should not use Company telephones for personal calls. It is understood that on occasion, exceptions to these general policies may be necessary. However, employees who abuse telephone privileges by making or receiving an excessive number of personal calls, or whose personal calls involve an inordinate amount of work time, will be subject to disciplinary action.

In addition, employees should not use Company telephones for personal toll calls (whether in-state or out-of-state). It is understood that on occasion, exceptions to this policy may be necessary -- for example, an employee needing to inform family members he or she will be working late. Employee who needs to use a Company telephone for a personal toll call under such special circumstances must inform their supervisor. No employee shall allow any private obligation of employment or enterprise to take precedence over his/her responsibility to the Company.

No employee shall accept employment with, or have, either directly or indirectly, a financial interest in any enterprise doing business with the Norwalk Transit District which could cause, or create the appearance of, a conflict with or influence the performance of the employee's duties with the Company. If an employee is in the position of dealing on behalf of the Company with another firm in which he/she has such a financial interest, responsibility should be delegated to another employee. As a general policy, employees in a position to influence company business decisions must maintain an "arm's length" relationship at all times when dealing withoutside interests.

All employees are also required to comply with Sections 1-79 through 1-89 of the CGS entitled Code of Ethics for Public Officials and are additionally advised that certain political activities governed by the Federal Hatch Act and CT Statute 5-266a may also result in a conflict of interest for The Norwalk Transit District employees. For further detail regarding the cited references please see the Human Resource Department.

Penalties

Given the Company's overriding responsibility for the proper use of public funds and facilities, employees found to be in violation of the foregoing policies will be subject to discipline, including possible immediate discharge.

APPENDIX D

REQUIRED PROPOSAL FORMS

REQUIRED PROPOSAL/BID FORMS

The following forms represent required proposal/bid forms that must be completed and returned concurrently with your proposal/bid. Failure to submit all the forms may render your proposal/bid non-responsive.

- Affirmative Action Policy Statement
- Affirmative Action Assignment of Responsibilities
- Affirmative Action Company Data Sheet
- Affidavit of Non-Collusion/Conflict of Interest
- Affidavit of Suspension and Debarment
- Title VI Contractor Assurance
- Responsibility Form
- Acknowledgement of Addenda

Signed:		
Authorized Corporate Official	Date	
Signed:		
Authorized Corporate Official	Date	

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION PLAN

Company Name	
Address	
City/State/Zip	
Area Code/Phone Number	
Area Code/Fax Number	
Contact Porcon	

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION POLICY STATEMENT

It is the policy of this firm to assure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to an individual's race, color, religion, sex, national origin or disability. Such action shall include: Employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job training. This policy and practice applies to all persons.

This firm will implement, monitor, enforce and achieve full compliance with this Affirmative Action Policy Statement in conjunction with the applicable Federal and State laws, regulations executive orders and the EEO contract provisions, including but not limited to those listed below:

- 1. Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
- 2. Title 23 U.S.C. 140
- 3. Title 23 CFR Part 200 and 230
- 4. Title 49 C.F.R. Part 21 & 26
- 5. Governor's Executive Orders #3 and #17
- 6. Connecticut Fair Employment Practices Act
- 7. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
- 8. Public Act No. 91-58
- 9. Specific Equal Employment Opportunities Responsibilities
- 10. Required Contract Provisions Federal Aid Construction Contracts
- 11. A (76) Affirmative Action Requirements
- 12. Training Special Provision
- 13. Minority Business Enterprises as Subcontractors
- 14. Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specification
- 15. Nondiscrimination Act

In implementing this policy and ensuring that equal opportunity is being provided to protected class members, each time a hiring opportunity occurs this firm will contact and request referrals from minority and female organizations, referral sources, and media sources. All advertising will emphasize that the firm is <u>"An Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer."</u>

In order to substantiate this firm's efforts and affirmative actions to provide equal opportunity, the firm will maintain and submit, as requested, documentation such as referral request correspondence, copies of advertisements utilized and follow-up documentation to substantiate that efforts were made in good faith. This firm will maintain internal EEO/affirmative action audit procedures and reporting, as record keeping systems.

It is understood by me, my Equal Employment Opportunity Officer and my supervisory and managerial personnel that failure to effectively implement, monitor and enforce this firm's affirmative action program and/or failure to adequately document the affirmative actions taken and efforts made to recruit and hire minority and female applicants, in accordance with our affirmative action program in each instance of hire, will result in this firm being to recommit itself to a modified and more stringent affirmative action program prior to receiving approval. It is recognized than an approved affirmative action program is a prerequisite for performing services for the contracting agency.

Managers and supervisors are advised of their responsibility for the Affirmative Action Program rewill be coordinated by	•	8					
has been designated the Equal Opportunity Officer of this firm. (Name / Title)							
This Affirmative Action Plan has my whole-hearted so are directed to aid in the development and implem objectives.	-						
Signature of Chief Executive Officer	 Date						

ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The contractor/consultant shall designate a res	ponsible official to monitor all employment related activity to ensure that
the firm's EEO policy is being implemented.	
I hereby appoint	as the Equal Employment Opportunity Officer
of this firm.	

Equal Employment Opportunity Officer

The contracting officers and equal opportunity officer (herinafter referred to as the EEO Officer) shall have the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively administering and promoting an active program of equal employment opportunity and who must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do so.

All members of the Company's staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and discharge employees, or who recommend such action, or who are substantially involved in such action, will be made fully cognizant of, and will implement, the Company's equal employment opportunity policy and contractual responsibilities to provide equal employment opportunity in each grade and classification of employment. To ensure that the above agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a minimum:

The EEO Officer's responsibilities shall include the following:

- 1. Conduct periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office employees upon hire and not less often than once every six months, at which time the equal employment opportunity policy and its implementation will be reviewed and explained. The meetings will be conducted by the company EEO Officer or another knowledgeable company official.
- All new supervisory of personnel office employees will be given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official, covering all major aspects of the contractor's equal employment opportunity obligations within thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor.
- 3. All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for the firm will be instructed by the EEO Officer or appropriate company official in the contractor's procedures for locating and hiring woman/minority group employees.
- 4. Develop, Implement and monitor progress in this firm's affirmative action plan.
- 5. Initiate and maintain contact with unions, recruitment sources and organizations servicing members of protected groups concerning the achievement of affirmative action requirements.
- 6. Place notices and posters setting forth the firms equal employment opportunity policy in areas accessible to employees, employment applicants and potential employees.
- 7. The equal employment opportunity policy and procedures to implement such policy will be brought to the attention of employees by meetings, employee handbooks, or other appropriate means.

- 8. The firm unless precluded by valid bargaining agreement will conduct systematic recruitment and private employee referral sources likely to yield qualified minority group applicants, including, but not limited to, State employment agencies, schools, colleges and minority group organizations. The firm's EEO Officer will identify sources of potential; minority group employees and establish with such identified sources, procedures whereby minority group applicant may be referred to the firm for employment consideration.
- 9. In the event that the firm has a valid bargaining agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, you are expected to observe the provisions of that agreement to the extent that the system permits the firm's compliance with equal employment opportunity contract provisions.
- 10. If the firm relies in whole or in part upon unions as a source of employees, you will use your best efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to increase opportunities for minority groups and women within the unions, and to effect referrals by such unions of minority and female employees.
- 11. The firm will periodically evaluate the spread of wages paid each classification to determine any evidence of discriminatory wage practices.
- 12. The firm will promptly investigate all complaints of alleged discrimination made to the firm.
- 13. The Company will conduct periodic inspections of project sites to insure that working conditions and employee facilities do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site personnel.
- 14. The Company will periodically review selected personnel actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of discrimination. Where evidence is found, the Company will promptly take corrective action. If the review indicates that the discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such corrective action shall include all affected persons.

EEO OFFICER SIGNATURE	DATE
CEO/PRESIDENT/OWNER SIGNATURE	DATE

Comp	any Na	ame:		

COMPANY DATA SHEET

INCLUDE ALL EMPLOYEES FULL AND PART-TIME:

JOB CATEGORIES		Number	Nun Wi	otal nber nite	Min	Number	Nui Bi	otal mber ack	His	Number panic	To Num Asia Pac Islar	nber In or Sific Inder	Total N Amer India Alas Nat	rican in or skan ive	Date of Last New Hire Per Category	Indi und	cate (F) er each	Female Race ca below:	ategory	Vlale box
CATEGORIES	M	oloyees F	M	oyees F	M	oyees F	M	loyees F	M	loyees F	Emplo M	F	Emple M	F	Date	В	W	Н	AA	Al
	141	<u> </u>	101		101	'	101		101	'	101		141		Dute		•		701	7.1
TOTAL NUMBER																				

AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION/CONFLICT OF INTEREST

I hereby swear (or affirm) under penalty for perjury:

*

- 1. That I am Offeror (if the Offeror is an individual), a partner in the offer (if the Offeror is a partnership), or an officer or employee of the Offeror corporation having the authority to sign on behalf (if the Offeror is a corporation);
- 2. That the attached offer has been arrived at by the Offeror independently, and has been submitted without collusion, and without any agreement, understanding, or planned common course of action with any other vendor of materials, supplies, equipment, or services described in this procurement document, designed to limit independent bidding or competition;
- 3. That the contents of the offer have not been communicated by the offer or it's employees or agents to any person not an employee or agent of the offer or it's surety or any bond furnished with the offer, and will not be communicated to any such person prior to the official awarding of this procurement; and
- 4. The Contractor shall not offer or provide gifts, gratuities, favors, entertainment or any other gratuities of monetary value to any official, employee or agent of Norwalk Transit District during the period of this contract or for one year thereafter.
- 5. Personal/Organizational conflict arises when (1) an employee, officer, agent or board member, (2) any member of his/her immediate family, (3) his/her partner, or (4) an organization that employs, or intends to employ any of the listed, participate in selection, award or administration of federally funded contracts and have financial or other interest in a firm competing for or selected for award. To the best of my knowledge and belief no affiliation exists relevant to possible organizational or personal conflicts of interest.
- 6. The Offeror shall disclose, to the best of his/her knowledge, any State employee, Norwalk Transit District employee, or member of the State legislature or any relative of such who is an officer or director of, or has a material interest in, the Offeror's business, who is in a position to influence this procurement.

Name	Relationships

Firm Name:	
Address:	
Authorized by:	-
Signature:	

That I have fully informed myself regarding the accuracy of the statement made in the affidavit.

Title:

Date:

Subscribed and sworn to me this _____ day of _______, 20___.

Notary Public

My commission expires _______, 20______, 20_____.

If the Offeror is unable to complete this form then it needs to disclose and attach to this form a detailed statement fully disclosing any exceptions and why it believes, in light of the interest(s) identified that performance of the proposed contract can be accomplished in an impartial and objective manner. Norwalk Transit District reserves the right to request more information, to disqualify the Offeror, to contract with the Offeror if it is in Norwalk Transit District's best interest and include appropriate provision to mitigate or avoid such conflict in the contract awarded. Refusal to provide the disclosure or representation or any additional information required, may result in disqualification of the Offeror for award. If nondisclosure or misrepresentation is discovered after award, the resulting contract may be terminated. If after award the Contractor discovers a conflict of interest with respect to the contract awarded as a result of this solicitation, which could not reasonably have been know prior to award, an immediate and full disclosure shall be made in writing to the Norwalk Transit District. The disclosure shall include a full description of the conflict, a description of the action the contractor has taken, or proposes to take, to avoid or mitigate such conflict. The Norwalk Transit District may, however, terminate the contract for convenience if he or she deems that termination is in the best interest of the Transit District.

(Failure to complete this form and to submit it with your offer may render this offer non-responsive)

STATE OF CONNECTICUT REQUIRED AFFIDAVIT OF SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT

(Offerors must submit evidence of SAM registration with their submittal. Additionally, check DAS website for list of State debarments)

The State of Connecticut Department of Transportation requires that this certification be included in each subcontract Agreement to which it is a party, and further, to require said certification to be included in any lower tier subcontracts and purchase orders as a direct result of this project.

Suspended or debarred Contractors, consulting engineers, suppliers, materialmen, lessors or other vendors may not submit proposals for a State contract or subcontract during the period of suspension or debarment regardless of their anticipated status at the time of contract award or commencement of work. The Norwalk Transit District as a part of its obligation to determine if a Vendor meets the responsibility criteria for federal and state contract award, will check prior to award both the State of Connecticut Debarment List and the **System for Award Management** (SAM). SAM is the Official U.S. Government system that consolidated the capabilities of CCR/FedReg, ORCA, and EPLS. There is NO fee to register for this site. Entities may register at https://www.sam.gov/. User guides and webinars are available under the Help tab.

The signature on the Agreement by the Second Party shall constitute certification that to the best of its knowledge and belief the Second Party or any person associated therewith in the capacity of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investigator, project director, manager, auditor or any position involving the administration of State and Federal funds.

- (1) Is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any State department or agency; and
- (2) Has not within the prescribed statutory time period preceding this agreement, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; and
- (3) Is not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (a)(2) of this certification; and
- (4) Has not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

b. Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, the Second Party shall attach an explanation to this agreement.

The Second Party agrees to insure that the following certification be included in each subcontract Agreement to which it is a party, and further, to require said certification to be included in any subcontracts, sub-contracts and purchase orders resulting directly from this contract.

(1) The prospective subcontractors, sub-subcontractors participants certifies, by submission of it/their proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal or State department or agency; and

(2)	Where the prospective subcontractors, sub-subcontractors participants are unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participants shall attach an explanation to this proposal.
I have fully	informed myself regarding the accuracy of the statement made in this affidavit.
Firm Name	e:
Address:	
Authorized	d by:
Signature:	
Title:	
Date:	
section un document	ee Proposers must be registered with SAM which requires a DUNS number. Please carefully review this der the state and federal suspension and debarment requirements contained in the procurement s. We reserve the right to determine the Proposer non-responsive if it fails to be registered with SAM e of the proposal submittal.
THIS FO	RM IS A REQUIRED SUBMITTAL TO BE RETURNED WITH YOUR RESPONSE.

TITLE VI CONTRACTOR ASSURANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT

For this document Contractor means Consultant, Consulting Engineer, Second Party, or other entity doing business with the District and Contract shall mean the same as Agreement.

During the performance of this Contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the "Con tractor") agrees as follows:

Compliance with Regulations: The Contractor shall comply with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the United States Department of Transportation {hereinafter, "USDOT11 }, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations"), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

Nondiscrimination: The Contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the Contract, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability in the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment. The Contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Subsection 5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the Contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment: - In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Contractor for work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by the Contractor of the Contractor's obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability.

Information and Reports: - The Contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Connecticut Department of Transportation (ConnDOT) or the Funding Agency (FHWA, FTA and FAA) to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders, and instructions. Where any information required of a Contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the Contractor shall so certify to ConnDOT or the Funding Agency, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information.

Sanctions for Noncompliance: - In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination provisions of this Contract, the ConnDOT shall impose such sanctions as it or the Funding Agency may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to:

- A. Withholding contract payments until the Contractor is in-compliance; and/or
- B. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions: - The Contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1 through 5 in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto. The Contractor shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the ConnDOT or the Funding Agency may -direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance. Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the Contractor may request the ConnDOT to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the Funding Agency, and, in addition, the

Managers and supervisors are being advised of their responsibilities to ensure the successful implementation of this policy. This Policy has my whole-hearted support and will be held responsible for compliance to its objectives.					
Company Name					
(if applicable, include d/b/a)					
Address					
City/State/Zip					
Area Code/Phone Number					
Area code/Fax Number	-				
Contact Person					

Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Lobbying Restrictions

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.
- 3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

 Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official
 Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official
 Date

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

Approved by OMB 4040-0013

Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C.1352

	Review Public Burden Disclosure State	ement
1. * Type of Federal Action:	2. * Status of Federal Action:	3. * Report Type:
a. contract	a. bid/offer/application	a. initial filing
b. grant	b. initial award	b. material change
c. cooperative agreement	c. post-award	
d. loan		
e. loan guarantee		
f. loan insurance		
4. Name and Address of Reporting E	entity:	
Prime SubAwardee		
* Name		
* Street 1	Street 2	
*0"	200	
* City	State	Zip
Congressional District, if known:		
-		
5. If Reporting Entity in No.4 is Subaw	ardee, Enter Name and Address of	Prime:
6. * Federal Department/Agency:	7. * Federal Pr	ogram Name/Description:
	CFDA Number, if app	licable:
8. Federal Action Number, if known:	9. Award Amo	
o. reactal Action Number, il Anown.		uik, ii kilowii.
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying	Pagistrant:	
	_	
Prefix * First Name	Middle Name	
* Last Name	Suffix	
200014		
* Street 1	Street 2	
* City	State	Zip
b. Individual Performing Services (included)	ling address if different from No. 10a)	
Prefix * First Name	Middle Name	
* Last Name	Suffix	
* Street 1	Street 2	
* City	State	Zip
4.4 Information requested through this form is authorized h	y title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying	a activities is a material representation of fact, upon which
reliance was placed by the tier above when the transac	tion was made or entered into. This disclosure is required	pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to
the Congress semi-annually and will be available for pu \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such fail		isclosure shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than
* Signature:		
• man		
*Name: * First Name	Middle	e Name
1 1		
* Last Name		Suffix
* Last Name		Suffix

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing pursuant to title 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

- 1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered Federal action.
- 2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.
- 3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred, Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this reporting entity for this covered Federal action.
- 4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if it is, or expects to be a prime or subaward receipt. Identify the tier of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts, subgrants and contract awards under grants.
- 5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks :Subawardee," then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.
- 6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.
- 7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (Item 1). If known, enter the full Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan commitments.
- 8. Enter the most appropriate Federal identifying number available for the Federal action identified in Item 1 (e.g., Request for Proposal (RFP) number; Invitation for bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g. "RFP-DE-90-001."
- 9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in Item 4 or 5.
- 10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged by the reporting entity identified in Item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.
 - (b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First Name and Middle Initial (MI).
- 11. Certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title and telephone number.

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB Control Number. The valid OMB control number for this information collection is OMB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.

RESPONSIBILITY QUESTIONNAIRE

PART I - INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. Please state "not applicable" in questions clearly not applicable to Bidder/Proposer in connection with this solicitation. Do not omit any question. If any representation is not accurate and complete at the time Bidder/Proposer signs this Questionnaire, Bidder/Proposer must, as part of its Bid/Proposal, identify the provision and explain the reason in detail in the space provided below. If additional space is needed, add additional sheet(s) to this Questionnaire. If this space is left blank, Bidder/Proposer shall be deemed to have represented and warranted the accuracy and completeness of the representations on this Questionnaire:
- 2. All information must be legible.
- 3. The term "Bidder" includes the term "Proposer" and also refers to the firm awarded the Contract. The term "Bid" includes the term "Proposal".
- 4. If during the performance of this Contract, either of the following occurs, Bidder shall promptly give notice in writing of the situation to NTD's CEO, and therefore cooperate with NTD's review and investigation of such information.
 - Bidder has reason to believe that any representation or answer to any question contained in this Questionnaire was not accurate or complete at the time this Questionnaire was signed; or
 - ii) Events occur or circumstances change so that an answer to any question is no longer accurate or complete.
- 5. In NTD 's sole discretion, the following shall constitute grounds for NTD to take remedial action up to and including immediate termination of the Contract for convenience without payment for profit and overhead for work not performed if:
 - i) Bidder fails to notify the PROJECT MANAGER as required by "4" above:
 - ii) Bidder fails to cooperate with NTD's request for additional information as required by "4" above.
- 6. NTD reserves the right to inquire further with respect to Bidder's responses; and Bidder consents to such further inquiry and agrees to furnish all relevant documents and information as requested by NTD. Any response to this document prior or subsequent to Bidder's Bid which is or may be construed as unfavorable to Bidder will not necessarily automatically result in a negative finding on the question of Bidder's responsibility or a decision to terminate the Contract if it is awarded to Bidder.

PART II - IDENTITY OF PROPOSER

Company Full Legal Name:
Contact Person:
Legal Address:
Legal Telephone Number:
Indicate all other names by which this organization has been know and the lengths of time know by each name. Please attach additional pages as needed.
Company Federal taxpayer identification number
Operating as one of the following forms of legal entity (Check whichever applies and fill in any appropriate blanks):
An individual or sole proprietorship
A general partnership
A limited partnership or LLP
A joint venture consisting of: and (List all joint ventures on a separate sheet if this space is inadequate.)
A non-profit organization
A corporation, or LLC organized or incorporated under the laws of the following state or country: on the following date:

f the organization is a corporation, indicate the following:
Date of incorporation:
State of incorporation:
President's name:
Vice-President's name:
Secretary's name:
. Certificate of Incorporation been previously filed with NTD (corporation only)
YesNoIf "NO", attach a certified copy
. How many years has this organization been in business under its present business name?
. How many employees does this organization have?
. If the organization is an individual or a partnership, answer the following:
Date of organization:
Name and address of all partners (state whether general or limited partnership) Please attach additional pages as needed.
If the organization is other than a corporation or partnership, describe the organization and naits principals. Please attach additional pages as needed:
List the States in which your organization is legally qualified to do business. Indicate category trade and indicate registration or license numbers, if applicable. List states in which partnership trade name is filed. Please attach additional pages as needed.

_	
8.	Trade References. List names, addresses and telephone numbers of three firms with whom your organization has regular business dealings. Please attach additional pages as needed.
9.	List below the names, business addresses, email addresses, telephone numbers and contact person(s) of three Companies for which similar work is performed in the previous three (3) years, (make your references aware that NTD will be calling and that the call should be addressed AS QUICKLY AS POSSIBLE; this may affect your responsibility scoring), Firms or Organizations similar in size to NTD for whom you have performed work/services similar to those sought through this Request for Proposal. Please include Name, address, and telephone number of the organization and contact person, brief description of project and month and year of contract. (Attach additional pages as needed)
10	Bank References: List names, addresses and telephone numbers of the financial institutions used by your organization. Please attach additional pages as needed:
11.	Has your organization ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? If so, note when, where and attach a separate sheet of explanation to this form.
_	
12.	Within the last five years, has any officer or partner of your organization ever been an officer or partner of another organization where it failed to complete a contract? If so, note whom, when and where and attach a separate sheet of explanation to this form.

13	The company needs to demonstrate that it has the financial capacity to carry out the project. This can be met by 1.) Providing a corporate financial statement for the most recent year or 2) a signed statement by the managing partner of the firm that the firm has a positive net worth and is not in default on any current obligations and has not filed for bankruptcy.
	the financial statement or alternative statement in item 13 is not the firm, please explain the ationship between the organization for which item 13 was provided and the firm.
	not, explain the relationship and financial responsibility of the organization whose financial tement is provided (e.g., parent, subsidiary):
15. W	fill this organization act as a guarantor of the contract for management?
	by that the attached financial statements for this Proposal properly reflect the financial position of mpany for the periods indicated on the financials.
	Day of, 20

PART III - TECHNICAL

1.	List each contract which, during the last two years, the person/entity contracting with you: i) terminated for default; ii) sued to compel performance; iii) sued to recover damages, including, without limitation, upon alleged breach of contract, misfeasance, error or omission or other alleged failure on your part to perform as required by your contract; or iv) called upon a surety to perform the work.			
2.	During the past three years, has the Proposer's firm ever been a party to a bankruptcy or reorganization proceeding?			
	YES NO If answer is "YES" explain below.			
3.	Describe below whether any present or anticipated Title VI Discrimination Complaints against your company exist. Attach additional paperwork if necessary. If none, state "None".			
4.	Describe whether any present or anticipated commitments and/or contractual obligations might have an influence on the capabilities of the Proposer to perform the work called for by this Contract. Any apparent conflicts as between the requirements/commitments for this Contract with respect to the use of Proposer's resources, such as management or technical expertise or financing, should be explained. If none, state "None".			

5. a. If any professional or other licenses, permits, or certifications are required to perform the work/services called for by this solicitation, list the license, permit, or certification that the Proposer or Proposer's employees or agents possess. If none, state "None".

b. If any insurance is required please provide certificates of insu Department of Transportation as an additional insured. If none,		NTD and the State of CT
Type of Insurance	uring Co.	<u>Limit of coverage</u>
c. Have any of the Proposer's officers, partners, owners, mana related licenses, permits or certifications revoked or suspended in YES NO If answer is "YES" expl	n the past three	
List the names, titles and attach resumes or brief descriptions of a management personnel assigned to this project. At a minimum the assigned to this project that will have the primary responsibility ander this contract. This should clearly reflect the record of skill project management team.	this will include for performing t	the primary Manger the majority of work

6.

PART IV - VERIFICATION AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF	
COUNTY OF)) ss.:
On the day of 20, bef	fore me personally came and appeared,
, by me known to be s	said person, who swore under oath as follows:
1. He/she is(Print title)	of (Print name of firm)
2. He/she is duly authorizes to sign this Questionna document pursuant to said authorization.	aire on behalf of said firm and duly signed this
3. The answers to the questions set forth in this Qu	estionnaire are true, accurate and complete.
4. He/she acknowledged and understands that the deemed included in the Contract if awarded to the	•
Sworn to before me this day of	, 20
(Notary Public)	_

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF ADDENDA

Addendum number	_dated	
Addendum number	_dated	
Addendum number	_dated	
Addendum number	dated	
Addendum number	dated	
	ot of all addenda may cause the proposal to be ceipt of each addendum must be clearly estab	
Date		
Signature		
Company Name		
Titlo		

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following addenda to the RFP documents:

PRICING FORM

This will be a firm fixed price annual contract. Include the dollar amount of your proposed compensation for this engagement. The fee will be paid on completion and acceptance of the finalized audit. The following cost proposal is offered for the Annual Audit of the Norwalk Transit District's Financial Statements as per the Technical Specification issued December 13, 2024 by the Norwalk Transit District and all subsequent addenda to those specifications.

Total Price year en	nding June 30,	2025:			
Total Price year en	nding June 30,	2026:			
Total Price year en	nding June 30,	2027:			
Total Price year ei	nding June 30,	2028:			
Total Price year ei	nding June 30,	2029:			
This cost proposal i Annual Audit of the					
Hourly Rates for A	Additional Prof	fessional Services			
	6/30/25	6/30/26	6/30/27	6/30/28	6/30/29
Partners					
Managers		_		_	
Staff		_		_	_
Other (Specify)		_		_	_
Other (Specify)		_		_	_
Other (Specify)		_		_	_
Other (Specify)					
Other (Specify)		_		_	
This proposal will r	remain in effect	for 45 days from t	the January 17, 20	25 proposal opening	ng date.
Date		Signature of	Authorized Offici	al	
		 Title			

APPENDIX E

NTD PROTEST PROCEDURES

PROTEST POLICY AND PROCEDURES

It is the policy of **NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT** that it is responsible for resolving all Pre-Bid, Pre-Award and Post-Award Procurement Protest disputes arising out of third-party procurements using good administrative practices and sound business judgment. It is **NTD's** intention that its procurement process provides for fair and open competition in compliance with federal and state laws and **NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT** policies.

NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT has established these Pre-Bid, Pre-Award and Post-Award Procurement Protest Policy and Procedures so that all procurement protests/disputes are filed, processed and resolved in a manner consistent with the requirements of the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Circular (4220.1F) *Third Party Contracting Guidance*, dated November 1, 2008, which are on file at **NTD's** Administrative Offices, 275 Wilson Avenue, Norwalk, CT 06854 and available upon request.

APPLICABILITY

This regulation is applicable to all **NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT** employees. This regulation is applicable to any Interested Party as defined herein who has a protest/dispute against **NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT** in the Pre-Bid, Pre-Award and Post-Award procurement phase.

DEFINITIONS

"Common Grant Rules" refers to the Department of Transportation regulations "Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments," 49 CFR Part 18, which apply to Federal grants and cooperative agreements with governmental recipients/subrecipients of Federal assistance including Indian tribal governments.

"Interested Party" means a party that is an actual or prospective firm submitting a quotation or offeror whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award or failure to award the third-party contract at issue. A subcontractor does not qualify as an "interested party".

"Protest" means a formal declaration of disapproval or objection issued by a concerned person, group, or organization that arises during the procurement process. A Protest is a potential firm submitting a quotation's or contractor's remedy for correcting a perceived wrong in the procurement process. See "Types of Protests" below.

"Protester" means a person, group, or organization that files a formal declaration of disapproval or objection. A protester must qualify as an "interested party".

"Types of Protests" there are three basic types of Protests pursuant to this regulation, based on the time in the procurement cycle when they occur:

- A pre-bid or solicitation phase Protest is received prior to the bid opening or proposal due date. Prebid protests are those based on the content of the initial Notice and/or solicitation published by NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT requesting bids from vendors or other interested parties.
- 2. A pre-award Protest is a protest against making an award and is received after receipt of proposals or bids, but before award of a contract.
- 3. A post-award Protest is a protest received after award of a contract. A post-award Protest must be received within 5 business days of the making of the award. A post-award Protest generally alleges a violation of applicable federal or state law and/or NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT policy or procedures relative to the seeking, evaluating and/or awarding of the contract.

STANDARDS

All Protests must be filed in writing to:

Norwalk Transit District Matt Pentz, CEO Norwalk Transit District 275 Wilson Avenue Norwalk, CT 06854

No other locations are acceptable.

A Protest must be in writing and set forth the specific grounds of the dispute and shall be fully supported with technical data, test results, or other pertinent information related to the subject being protested. The Protest shall include the name and contact information of the Protester, solicitation/contract number or description, and what remedy the Protester is seeking. The Protester is responsible for adhering to this regulation. A Protester must exhaust all of protest administrative remedies before pursuing a protest with the FTA.

Norwalk Transit District's CEO, Matt Pentz, or designee shall make a determination on the Protest generally within ten (10) working days from receipt of the Protest. The Decision of the CEO or Designee must be in writing and shall include a response to each substantive issue raised in the Protest. The CEO's decision shall constitute **NTD's** final administrative determination.

If **NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT** postpones the date of proposal submission because of a Protest or Appeal of the solicitation specifications, addenda, dates or any other issue relating to the procurement, **NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT** will notify, via addendum, all parties who are on record as having obtained a copy of the solicitation documents that a Protest/Appeal had been filed, and the due date for proposal submission shall be postponed until the CEO or Designee has issued its final Decision.

The Protester may withdraw its Protest or Appeal at any time before a final decision is issued.

Reviews of Protests by FTA are limited to 1) failure to have or follow its protest procedures, or its failure to review a complaint or Protest; or 2) violations of Federal law or regulation.

A Protest Appeal to the FTA must be filed in accordance with the provisions of FTA Circular 4220.1F. Any appeal to the FTA shall be made not later than five (5) working days after a final decision by the CEO, or Designee is rendered. Protest appeals should be filed with:

Federal Transit Administration

Regional Administrator Region I Transportation Systems Center Kendall Square 55 Broadway, Suite 920 Cambridge, MA 02141-1093 Phone: 617-494-2055

Fax: 212-668-2136

NTD RESPONSIBILITIES TO FTA

NTD will notify FTA when they receive a third-party contract protest to which the FTA Circular (4420.1F) *Third Party Contracting Guidance* applies, and will keep FTA informed about the status of the Protest including any appeals.

NTD will provide the following information to FTA:

Subjects: A list of Protests involving third party contracts and potential third

party contracts that:

- ✓ Have a value exceeding \$100,000, or
- ✓ Involve controversial matter, irrespective of amount, or
- ✓ Involve a highly publicized matter, irrespective of amount.

Details: The following information about each Protest:

- ✓ A brief description of the Protest,
- ✓ The basis of disagreement, and
- ✓ If open, how far the Protest has proceeded, or
- ✓ If resolved, the agreement or decision reached, and
- ✓ Whether an appeal has been taken or is likely to be taken.

✓

When and Where: NTD will provide this information:

- ✓ In its next quarterly Milestone Progress Report, and
- ✓ At its next Project Management Oversight review, if any.

Officials to Notify: When NTD denies a bid Protest, and an appeal is likely to occur, NTD will inform the FTA Regional Administrator for Region I or the FTA Associate Administrator for the program office administering a headquarters project directly about the likely appeal.

NTD will disclose information about any third-party procurement Protest to FTA upon request. FTA reserves the right to require NTD to provide copies of a particular Protest or all Protests, and any or all related supporting documents, as FTA may deem necessary.

Failure to comply with the above protest procedures will render a protest untimely and/or inadequate and shall result in its rejection.

**NORWALK TRANSIT DISTRICT reserves the right to modify its protest procedures for the procurement of commodities such as diesel fuel, as award notification must be on the date of the bid opening or within a relatively short period of time thereafter as pricing is tied to market pricing and subject fluctuations of the market.